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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH
ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “"STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited
to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will
be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss however
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of China Automotive Interior
Decoration Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (“GEM
Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard
to the Company. The directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief
the information contained in this report is accurate and complete
in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there
are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement herein or this report misleading.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued)
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of China
Automotive Interior Decoration Holdings Limited (the “Company”),
| am pleased to present the audited annual results of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2013.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2013.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
nonwoven fabric products used in automotive interior decoration
parts and other parts, trading of rubber, garment accessories and
food products.

Manufacture and sale of nonwoven fabric
products

Manufacture and sale of nonwoven fabric products is the core
business of the Group. The Group manufactures its products with
single layer or multiple layers of nonwoven fabric in accordance
with specific requirements and standards of different customers.
Most of the customers of nonwoven fabric products are primary
manufacturers and suppliers of automotive parts in the PRC. The
majority of the Group’s products are further processed by these
customers in order to make different automotive parts such as
floor, head lining, seat cover, parcel tray, trunk, luggage-side trim,
hubcap and car-mat, which are of different characteristics and are
to be applied for different usages in passenger vehicles.

According to the statistics released from China Association of
Automobile Manufacturers (“CAAM"), the production and sales
of passenger vehicles in the PRC were approximately 18,085,000
units and 17,928,000 units respectively during 2013, representing
an increase of approximately 16.5% and 15.7%. These favorable
growth in passenger vehicles market resulted in a stable demand
for automotive interior decoration materials of the Group during
2013.

In addition, the Group's committed efforts in research and
development in the use of new materials and improvement of
production technologies yielded successful results in late 2012.
Such efforts were carried on in the manufacturing process of the
Group in 2013 and reduced some production cost during the year
under review.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

ITRBEREEBIWED N (A

Trading of rubber

The Group commenced its business of rubber trading since last
quarter of 2012 and expanded the operation after the acquisition
of entire business of synthetic and nature rubber trading on 26
March 2013. Operationally, the Group imported raw rubber and
sold to customers and traders in the PRC. To manage the risk, the
Group mainly carried out that business in back-to-back model.
With solid business track records, the Group was already granted
new banking facility to enhance the capital resources for the
business growth of trading of rubber.

Diversification of business

It is the Group’s objective to pursue its existing business and
at the same time, to actively seek opportunities to diversify its
existing business in order to reduce business risk. Since the second
quarter of 2013, the Group has diversified into the business
of trading of garment accessories, such as polyester tape and
polyester string. Operationally, the Group mainly accepted sale
orders in Hong Kong and acquired the garments accessories in the
PRC.

The Group also diversified into the business of trading of food
products but it still could not contribute positively to the financial
result of the Group. After careful evaluation of that business, the
Group downsized the operation in the fourth quarter of 2013.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 December 2013 and
2012 was illustrated as follows:
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

ITRBEREEBIWED N (A

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s revenue
increased to approximately RMB543.4 million, compared to
approximately RMB166.9 million in 2012, representing an increase
of approximately 225.6%. The increase in the Group's revenue
was mainly attributable to the increase in demand of the Group’s
nonwoven products under the stable growth of production and
sales of passenger vehicles in the PRC, the expansion of business
of sales of rubber and the new contribution from the business of
trading of garment accessories.

Gross profit

The gross profit of the Group increased by approximately
RMB22.4 million from approximately RMB28.4 million in 2012 to
approximately RMB50.8 million in 2013. The increase was mainly
attributable to the growth of revenue of the Group and decrease
in average cost of production of the business of manufacturing.
The gross profit margin of business of trading is generally lower
than the business of manufacturing. During the year under review,
the gross profit margin of rubber trading was approximately 1%.
Therefore the gross profit margin of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2013 decreased to approximately 9%.

Other income

The Group’s other income increased by approximately RMB20.6
million from approximately RMB4.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2012 to approximately RMB25.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2013. The increase was mainly due to the
unrealised gain on held-for-trading investments of approximately
RMB20.1 million. Since 2012, the Group deployed financial
resource to securities investment to achieve earnings in the
form of capital appreciation and income from dividends. At 31
December 2013, the held-for-trading investments of approximately
RMB27.1 million only comprised of securities from companies
listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.

Selling and distribution costs

As the expansion of business of the Group, the selling and
distribution costs increased by approximately RMB1.7 million from
approximately RMB7.3 million in 2012 to approximately RMB9
million for the year ended 31 December 2013.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

ITRBEREEBIWED N (A

Share of loss of an associate

On 17 October 2012, the Group entered into a joint venture
agreement with a sizeable Korean company to setup a joint
venture company for the purposes of production and sale of
polyester fibers used in automobiles in the PRC. During the year
ended 31 December 2013, the share of loss of an associate of
approximately RMB1.4 million was mainly the preliminary expenses
incurred for the establishment of the joint venture company. The
joint venture company already began production testing since the
third quarter of 2013 and the Group expected it will secure raw
materials supply and accelerate the production expansion plan of
the Group horizontally.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses increased by approximately
RMB3.7 million from approximately RMB11.8 million in 2012 to
approximately RMB15.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2013. The increase was principally attributable to the expansion
of business of the Group, and the increase in the Group’'s
professional fee in relation to the application of transfer of listing
of the Company during the first quarter of 2013.

Finance costs

The finance costs increased by approximately RMB0.9 million from
approximately RMB1.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2012 to approximately RMB2.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2013. The increase was mainly due to the recognition of
interest expenses of approximately RMB0.8 million on promissory
note issued on 27 May 2013 for the acquisition of business of
trading of garment accessories.

Profit attributable to the owners of the
Company

The profit attributable to the owners of the Company was
approximately RMB43 million for the year of 2013 compared with
approximately RMB10.8 million for the corresponding period of
2012. The increase was mainly due to the increase in demand
of automotive interior decoration materials of the Group’s core
business under the continuous growth in automotive industry in
the PRC and the increase in unrealised gain on held-for-trading
investments of the Group.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

ITRBEREEBIWED N (A

OUTLOOK

CAAM expects the sale of automotives in the PRC will increase by
8% to 10% in 2014. As the Group’s nonwoven fabric products are
ultimately used in the passenger vehicles, the Board expects the
prospect of the business is still promising. To keep a steady pace
of development, the Group will continuously deploy its resources
on:

(1) upgrading the production lines in order to improve the
production efficiency;

(2) installing new machineries to suit the customers’ varying
requirements and demands on high-end products;

(3) conducting research and development to keep up with
the latest technological trends in relation to product
specifications;

(4) accelerating the launch of new products to capture extra
market share and expand the market coverage in the PRC;
and

(5) strengthening the quality control systems to retain customer
loyalty and reinforce the Group’s reputation in the nonwoven
fabric industry in the PRC.

Trading of rubber yielded stable return with a lower risk level. The
Group considered that the PRC’s market is still a major driver for
rubber trading of the Group. Supported by a highly professional
and experienced team on rubber trading, the Group has quickly
built up strategic alignment with both upstream and downstream
partners, and started to establish the market reputation steadily.
Therefore, the Board expects the future income stream of trading
of rubber will be strengthened and secured. On the other hand,
the Group has just restructured the operations of the business
of trading of garment accessories, the Board expects it will
continuously contribute a stable return to the Group.

Going forward, with a view to achieving better return and
enhancing the expansion of the Group, the Group will look for
potential investment opportunities to diversify its business scope.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

ITRBEREEBIWED N (A

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Current assets MENEE
Current liabilities mEaE
Current ratio e =&

The current ratio of the Group at 31 December 2013 was 2.52
times as compared to that of 3.72 times at 31 December 2012. It
was mainly resulted from the issue of promissory note during the
year.

At 31 December 2013, the Group’s gearing ratio (represented by
totals of bank borrowings, bank overdrafts and promissory note
divided by summation of total bank borrowings, bank overdrafts,
promissory note and equity) amounted to approximately 16.5%
(2012: 13.6%).

TREASURY POLICY

The Group generally financed its operations by internal cash
resources and bank financing. On 27 May 2013, the Company
issued 72,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each in the principal amount
of HK$14.4 million and a promissory note in the principal amount
of HK$20 million for the acquisition of the business of trading of
garment accessories.

At 31 December 2013, cash and bank balances of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB51.5 million (2012: RMB82.1
million), and approximately RMB35.5 million (2012: RMB71.6
million) of which are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
United States dollars. Taking into account the Group’s cash
reserves and recurring cash flows from its operations, the Group’s
financial position is stable and healthy.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

ITRBEREEBIWED N (A

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Except 72,000,000 shares of the Company were issued and
allotted on 27 May 2013, there has been no material change in
the capital structure of the Group since 31 December 2012.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Majority of the assets and liabilities of the Group were
denominated in Renminbi, United States dollars and Hong Kong
dollars. At 31 December 2013, the Group had no significant
exposure under foreign exchange contracts, interest, currency
swaps or other financial derivatives.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

At 31 December 2013, there was no significant investment held by
the Group (2012: Nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS

On 26 March 2013, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement pursuant to which the Group acquired the entire
business of trading of synthetic rubber at a consideration of
HK$28 million. The acquisition was completed on 21 May 2013.

On 15 May 2013, the Group acquired the entire business of
trading of garment accessories at a consideration of HK$42
million. The acquisition was completed on 27 May 2013, and
72,000,000 shares of the Company in the principal amount of
HK$14.4 million and the promissory note in the principal amount
of HK$20 million were issued to the vendor, and the cash
consideration as to HK$7.6 million also paid to the vendor as
payment of the consideration for the acquisition pursuant to the
sale and purchase agreement.

Except as disclosed above, there was no material acquisitions or
disposal of subsidiaries and affiliated companies by the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2013.

PLEDGE ON ASSETS

At 31 December 2013, the Group’s buildings with a carrying
amounts of approximately RMB11.7 million (2012: RMB7.5
million), prepaid land lease payments with a carrying amounts
of approximately RMB2.9 million (2012: RMB3 million) and bank
deposits with a carrying amounts of approximately RMB6.1 million
(2012: Nil) were pledged to banks for bank borrowings and bank
overdrafts.

ERE

B2 72,000,000 A 2Bl R HER =T —=F A
A+ +tBETREREN BZE—ZF+=2A
—t+—HRAEBEEXNEEBEEREH -

S EE LB

REBRFBHABEENBERARE - XX RETY
B-R-TE—=F+"HA=+—H AEEHEHA
SMNESL - ME - BEEMSRHEMERITETAM
MR EMERELR -

BEARKRE
R-ZT—=ZF+_A=+—H AEETEHEE
ARE(ZE——F : &|) -

BEXAKBIEHE

R-TZ—=ZF=ZA -+ 8B AEETLEEW
& B AEEARE 28,000,000 T U EE 2
BEAREBER - KWBEEFBEER_T—=41A
ZH—HEK -

RZE—Z=ZFRA+THB ZEBENURE
42,000,000 T 2 MR KEGHEEER - I
BEHEOR - ZE—=FRAA_t+tB=K " BREE
Bk ASBEEME S #1772,000,000 R A A
A - N4 % A14,400,00058 70 0 ARAE 5
20,000,000 7% 7T &) # (5 = 4% - 38 & X & 7,600,000
BLNEXNFES  (FARBEENRE -

BREXFEEEN REE_T-—Z=ZF1+=
=t HLEFE  AEESRERMBRATREEA
AETERREHIHE -

BEREE

RZE—Z=ZF+-_A=+—H0 AEEEFEEEHA
RENTESL(ZZE—Z=F: ARKISHEETL)
WET  REENARE 2988 TL(ZE——F:
AREIAEL)NBEMN T HASERERERELOA
REeI1ABT(ZZE——F : ®)NRTEREER
FIRITIERBITIER LIRITE S 2R

“E-=HER

11



12

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

At 31 December 2013, the Group employed a total of 173
employees (2012: 184). The emolument policy of the employees
of the Group was set up by the Board on the basis of their
experience, qualifications and competence. Other employees’
benefits include contributions to statutory mandatory provident
funds, and social insurance together with housing provident funds
to its employees in Hong Kong and the PRC respectively.

A remuneration committee was set up for, inter alia, reviewing
the Group’s emolument policy and structure for all directors and
senior management of the Group.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Group, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my sincere gratitude to all of our customers, business
partners and investors for their support and trust towards the
Group. Further, | would like to express my sincere thanks to our
Directors and employees for their dedications and contributions to
the Group.

By order of the Board

Zhuang Yuejin
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 21 February 2014

BERFMER

R-ZF-—ZF+-A=+—A KEEHEM173
HEE(ZT—-F:184%) - XEEWERHM
BRDEEERREBSOER  BAER T
MHIE - 2t BEF DRI BERERPEREER
EERHMDESUK  HERBUAREREAES -

FHZBEEERY  §E(ATEE) RS AEE
FIBEEEREREIEBHFHMER LGRS -

]

AABREAKE RUBERAAKEZMAR
F - XBBHRREE S A KB NEEEUA
RO E I AATROLEHRMANEER
BEHAKEFHNE IMER -

ERESEEH

HRE
FERITEKARE

HE —E—WF-_A=-+—H

Annual Report 2013



EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhuang Yuejin, aged 51, is the Chairman of the Board, Chief
Executive Officer of the Company and one of the founders of the
Group. He was appointed as an executive Director on 12 April
2010. He has over 11 years of experience in the nonwoven textile
industry. He is responsible for formulating the Group’s corporate
strategy, overseeing its production operations and the overall
steering of the Group’s strategic development.

Mr. Zhuang graduated from Xiamen Fisheries College in 1981
and was approved as a qualified engineer by the Intermediate
Level Adjudication Committee of Xiamen City Marine Engineering
Department in 1990. From 1997 to 2001, Mr. Zhuang was the
director and the general manager of Xiamen Marine Industries
(Group) Co., Limited, a PRC incorporated company and was
previously listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Zhuang
is the spouse of Ms. Ruan Bixia, a manager of Joystar (Wuxi)
Automotive Interior Decoration Co., Ltd. (“Joystar Wuxi"”), the
Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary.

Mr. Pak Ping, aged 54, was appointed as an executive Director
on 12 April 2010. Mr. Pak has over 17 years of experience in the
nonwoven material and carpet industry. He is primarily responsible
for coordinating the marketing activities and formulating product
development strategies for the Group.

With extensive experience and profound knowledge on the
nonwoven product industry, Mr. Pak co-founded the Group with
Mr. Zhuang Yuejin in 2003.

Mr. Wong Ho Yin, aged 44, was appointed as an executive
Director and company secretary on 30 June 2011. He graduated
from Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Master of Corporate
Governance Degree and a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Accountancy.
He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of both the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wong was the financial controller
and company secretary of a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, namely Ching Hing (Holdings) Limited
(currently known as China Household Holdings Limited) (Stock
Code: 692), from September 2006 to October 2010. He has
extensive experience in accounting and corporate compliance.
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Mak Wai Ho, aged 41, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 9 September 2011. He was graduated
from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology with
a Bachelor degree in Business Administration in Finance. He
is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in the United Kingdom and a practising member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is a
practising certified public accountant and has more than 16 years
of experience in finance, accounting and auditing.

Mr. Mak is currently an independent non-executive director of
Xinhua Winshare Publishing and Media Co., Ltd., (Stock code:
811) and was the company secretary and financial controller of
Kong Sun Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 295) from September
2005 to November 2009.

Mr. Feng Xueben, aged 66, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 12 April 2010. Mr. Feng was approved
as a qualified engineer specialising in textile machinery design by
the Textile Industry Department of the People’s Republic of China
in 1989. Since 2003, Mr. Feng has been the chief engineer of
Wuxi Jiayuan Nonwovens Technology Research Institute.

Mr. Feng was an independent director of Fujian Nanfang Textile
Co., Ltd (Stock Code: 600483), a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange, from June 2002 to May 2008. He was the deputy
director of Nonwoven Textile Machinery Professional Committee
of China Textile Machinery Association from 2007 to 2009. Since
February 2010, Mr. Feng has also been an independent non-
executive director of Costin New Materials Group Limited (Stock
Code: 2228), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Ms. Sung Kwan Wun, aged 48, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 19 August 2013. Ms. Sung engaged
in import and export industry for more than 25 years. She held
management positions in several trading companies and was
responsible for regional marketing strategy and internal staff
training. Ms. Sung has extensive knowledge in corporate operation
management, and in marketing in the PRC and Europe. Moreover,
she is experienced in investing in real estate and commodity
futures.
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Wang Haiying, aged 44, has been the deputy general
manager of Joystar Wuxi since 2007 and is responsible for
overseeing the production process and quality control of the
Group.

Ms. Wang graduated from Wuhan Institute of Textile Engineering
(currently known as Wuhan Textile University) in 1994, specialising
in textile engineering. She has extensive experience in the
industrial use textile industry and joined the Group as the head of
quality control department of Joystar Wuxi in 2004.

Mr. Han Zhiqing, aged 49, has been the deputy general manager
of Joystar Wuxi since 2004 and is responsible for coordinating the
technological development and mechanical support for the Group.

Mr. Han graduated from Shanghai Wool and Jute Textile Company
Workers’ University in 1982, specialising in woolen textile. Mr.
Han has over 10 years of extensive experience in the industrial use
textile industry.

Ms. Ruan Bixia, aged 49, is a manager of Joystar Wuxi. She
was the Director of the Company from 12 April 2010 to 20 May
2013. She has over 11 years of experience in the nonwoven textile
industry. She is primarily responsible for supervising the delivery of
customer service and the Group's expansion within the PRC.

Ms. Ruan graduated from Fujian Chemical Industry School in July
1989. Ms. Ruan is the spouse of Mr. Zhuang Yuejin, an executive
Director.

Ms. Wu Danping, aged 39, is the manager of the accounting
department of Joystar Wuxi. Ms. Wu is responsible for the
financial reporting and the management of the accounting and
finance department of Joystar Wuxi.

Ms. Wu obtained the Certificate of Accounting Professional
issued by the Jiangsu Province Department of Finance and the
Qualification Certificate of Specialty and Technology with specialty
in accountancy conferred by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC in
1997 and 2006 respectively.

In 2008, Ms. Wu completed an online diploma programme in
accountancy from China Agricultural University. She has 16 years
of experience in financial accounting and reporting.
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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Mr. Wu Ganghua, aged 43, is the manager of the sales and
marketing department of Joystar Wuxi. He is responsible for the
sales and marketing operation of Joystar Wuxi.

In 1990, Mr. Wu graduated from lJiangsu Province Wuxi City
College of Mechanical Manufacturing (currently known as Wuxi
Institute of Technology). He was qualified as an assistant engineer
in mechanical manufacturing by Wuxi City Professional Title
Reform Committee in 1996. Mr. Wu further obtained a graduation
certificate from Nanjing Normal University in 1999. Mr. Wu joined
Joystar Wuxi in 2004.
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Pursuant to the Rule 18.44 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange
(the "GEM Listing Rules”), the Board is pleased to present the
corporate governance report for the year ended 31 December
2013. This report highlights the key corporate governance
practices of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance to protect the interests of the shareholders
of the Company. The Company’s corporate governance practices
are based on principles and code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (“Code”) in Appendix 15 to the GEM
Listing Rules. Except for the deviation from Code provision A.2.1
and A.6.7, the Company complied with the Code for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Zhuang Yuejin is the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Such
deviation from Code provision A.2.1 is deemed appropriate as it is
considered to be more efficient to have one single person as the
Chairman of the Company as well as to discharge the executive
functions of a chief executive officer, and it provides the Group
with strong and consistent leadership in the development and
execution of long term business strategies. The Board believes
that the balance of power and authority is adequately ensured by
the operations of the Board which comprises highly experienced
individuals. There are three independent non-executive Directors
on the Board. All of them possess adequate independence and
therefore the Board considers the Company has achieved balance
and provided sufficient protection of its interests.

Code provision A.6.7 stipulates that independent non-executive
Directors should attend general meetings of the Company.
Owing to overseas engagements, two independent non-executive
Directors, Mr. Feng Xueben and Dr. Tang Yanfei, were unable
to attend the general meetings of the Company held on 20 May
2013.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
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CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry with all
Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors have complied
with the code of conduct and the required standard of dealings
concerning securities transactions by the Directors for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

At 31 December 2013, the Board comprises three executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhuang Yuejin (Chairman)
Mr. Pak Ping
Mr. Wong Ho Yin

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Mak Wai Ho
Mr. Feng Xueben
Ms. Sung Kwan Wun

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director
having sound industry knowledge, extensive corporate and
strategic planning experience and/or expertise relevant to the
business of the Group. The biographical details of the Directors
and the relationship among the members of the Board are set
out in the “Biographical Information of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 13 to 16 of this report.

Generally, the responsibilities of the Board include:
o Formulation of overall strategic development of the Group;

o Monitoring the financial performance and internal control of
the Group’s business operations;

o Material acquisitions, investments, disposal of assets or any
significant capital expenditure;

o Appointment, removal or reappointment of Board members
and auditors;

. Remuneration of Directors;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
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o Communications with key stakeholders;
o Recommendation and declaration of any interim and final
dividends

Executive Directors are responsible for running the Group and
executing the strategies adopted by the Board. The Board
delegates day-to-day activities to the management with
department heads responsible for different aspects of the business.
The non-executive Directors serve the relevant function of bringing
independent judgment on the development, performance and risk
management of the Group through their contributions in board
meetings. They are also serving on remuneration committee,
nomination committee and audit committee.

During the year, the Board complies with the requirement of the
GEM Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors and at least one of them has
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The Company has received from
each independent non-executive Director an annual confirmation
of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules and the Company considers all the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.

The Board normally has four regular meetings a year at quarterly
interval and meets as and when required to discuss the overall
business, development strategy, operations and financial reporting
of the Company. The Directors can attend meetings in person or
through other means of electronic communication in accordance
with the Company’s articles of association. During the year ended
31 December 2013, sixteen Board meetings and one general
meeting were held. The following table shows the attendance of
individual Directors at the meetings held during the year:

No. of Attendance

General Board

Members meetings meetings
Executive Directors
Mr. Zhuang Yuejin 11 10/16
Mr. Pak Ping 11 14/16
Mr. Wong Ho Yin 11 16/16
Ms. Ruan Bixia (retired on 20 May 2013) 0/1 5/6
Mr. Ni Bin (appointed on 31 May 2013 0/1 4/6

and resigned on 21 November 2013)
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Mak Wai Ho 11 8/16
Mr. Feng Xueben 0/1 9/16
Ms. Sung Kwan Wun

(appointed on 19 August 2013) 0/0 1/4
Dr. Tang Yanfei (retired on 20 May 2013) 0/1 5/6
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The Directors will receive details of agenda and minutes of
committee meetings in advance of and after each Board meeting
respectively. The company secretary will distribute relevant
documents to the Directors in a timely manner to enable the
Directors to make informed decisions on matters to be raised at
the Board meetings. All Directors have access to the advice and
services of the company secretary who is responsible for ensuring
the procedures of the Board meetings are complied with, and in
consultation with the compliance officer of the Company, advising
the Board on compliance matters.

In addition, the Company has maintained a procedure for the
Directors to seek independent professional advice, in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense in discharging their
duties to the Company. Moreover, the company secretary
prepares minutes of the Board meetings and keeps records of
matters discussed and decisions resolved at all Board meetings.
The company secretary also keeps the minutes of the Board
meetings, which are open for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any Director.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

Mr. Zhuang Yuejin is the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company. Such deviation from Code provision A.2.1 is
deemed appropriate as it is considered to be more efficient to
have one single person as the Chairman of the Company as
well as to discharge the executive functions of a chief executive
officer, and it provides the Group with strong and consistent
leadership in the development and execution of long term business
strategies. The Board believes that the balance of power and
authority is adequately ensured by the operations of the Board
which comprises highly experienced individuals. There are three
independent non-executive Directors on the Board. All of them
possess adequate independence and therefore the Board considers
the Company has achieved balance and provided sufficient
protection of its interests.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL

According to the Company’s articles of association, one-third of
the Directors are required to retire from office at each annual
general meeting, provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once in every three years. A Director
appointed since the most recent annual general meeting shall hold
office only until the next annual general meeting and shall then be
eligible for re-election. The independent non-executive Directors
were appointed at specific terms for one year.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to Code provision A.6.5, all Directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. All the Directors
also understand the importance of continuous professional
development and are committed to participate any suitable
training or read relevant materials in order to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. The Company has received from
each Director a confirmation of their participation in continuous
professional development by the following means:

Members Types of training

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhuang Yuejin A, B, C

Mr. Pak Ping C

Mr. Wong Ho Yin A, C

Ms. Ruan Bixia (retired on 20 May 2013) C

Mr. Ni Bin (appointed on 31 May 2013 C
and resigned on 21 November 2013)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Mak Wai Ho A, C

Mr. Feng Xueben B, C

Ms. Sung Kwan Wun C
(appointed on 19 August 2013)

Dr. Tang Yanfei (retired on 20 May 2013) B, C

Note:

A: attending training courses or seminars

B: giving talks at seminars, conferences or forums

C: reading newspapers, journals and relevant materials

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

During the year, the Board adopted a board diversity policy setting
out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company
considered diversity of board members can be achieved through
consideration of a number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. All Board appointments will be
based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board.
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Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. The ultimate decision will be made upon the merits
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee on 13
September 2010 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the Code. The primary duties of the remuneration committee
include making recommendations to the Board on the policy and
structure for all Directors and senior management, reviewing
the terms of remuneration packages, determining the award
of bonuses and considering the grant of options under the
share option scheme of the Company. At 31 December 2013,
the remuneration committee comprises one executive Director,
namely, Mr. Zhuang Yuejin and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Mak Wai Ho (chairman of the remuneration
committee) and Ms. Sung Kwan Wun.

During the year, two meetings was held by the remuneration
committee to discuss, among other things, the remuneration policy
of the Group and determine the remuneration of the Directors.
The following table shows the attendance of individual members
at the meetings held during the year:

Members No. of Attendance

Executive Director
Mr. Zhuang Yuejin 2/2

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Mak Wai Ho 2/2
Ms. Sung Kwan Wun

(appointed on 19 August 2013) 11
Dr. Tang Yanfei (retired on 20 May 2013) 0/0
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee on 13
September 2010 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the Code. The primary duties of the nomination committee
include reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board,
making recommendations to the Board regarding candidates
to fill vacancies on the Board, assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors and making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors
and succession planning for Directors. The nomination committee
comprises one executive Director, namely Mr. Zhuang Yuejin
(chairman of the nomination committee), and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Mak Wai Ho and Mr. Feng
Xueben.

During the year, three meetings was held by the nomination
committee to, among other things, review the structure, size and
composition of the board, assess the independence of each of the
independent non-executive Directors, formulate the board diversity
policy and recommend to the board for approval. The nomination
committee reviewed the board diversity policy to ensure its
effectiveness and considered the Group achieved the policy
since its adoption. The following table shows the attendance of
individual members at the meeting held during the year:

Members No. of Attendance
Executive Director

Mr. Zhuang Yuejin 3/3
Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Mak Wai Ho 3/3
Mr. Feng Xueben 1/3

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee on 13 September
2010 in compliance with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Written terms of reference in compliance with Code
provision C.3.3 have been adopted. The primary duties of the
audit committee are, among other things, to review and supervise
the financial reporting process and internal control system of the
Group. At 31 December 2013, the audit committee comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Mak Wai
Ho (chairman of the audit committee), Mr. Feng Xueben and Ms.
Sung Kwan Wun.
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During the year, five meetings were held by the audit committee,
two of which was with the attendance of external auditors. The
following table shows the attendance of individual members at the
meetings held during the year:

Members No. of Attendance

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Mak Wai Ho 5/5
Mr. Feng Xueben 5/5
Ms. Sung Kwan Wun

(appointed on 19 August 2013) 11
Dr. Tang Yanfei

(retired on 20 May 2013) 3/3

During the year, the audit committee, among other things,
reviewed the quarterly, interim and annual reports as well as
result announcements before submission to the Board. The audit
committee focuses not only on the impact of the changes in
accounting policies and practices but also on the compliance
with accounting standards, the GEM Listing Rules and the legal
requirements in review of the Company’s quarterly, interim
and annual reports as well as result announcements. The audit
committee also reviewed the Company’s financial controls, internal
control and risk management systems and make recommendation
to the Board on the re-appointment of the external auditors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in
the Code provision D.3.1.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, continuous professional development of Directors,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the GEM Listing Rules,
and the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in
this Corporate Governance Report.

KER - BREERRTRRER  SNEERAD
R RR RS o FRAFNERER B H
Rk

K8 HERE
BB ITEE
BRERLE 5/5
REBART A 5/5
REBLET(R-ZF—=F/1H

T HEZE) 1/1
BRIEBE(R=—F—=F7H

—FHRT) 3/3

FR BERZBERFTE  TH FEREUEE
BASREEZGN(HPER)ENZERS - &
RZB@TEIRSHARRLEREDINEE 1
EHARAZE P FERSUNEELSEH
TEIRENE SR - fIER ETRA A
RERE - ERZEBETRNARRNMBKERZ - K
MEEREARERERS  YRHEBIMNERBEMAE
FERLERE -

it

e

ERBERITTANEXED. 3.1 RATEBEE -

EFECRMAQFNERERBRREER EF
MIBEEERR  ARREETERREERES
EHBELER  BTAIERLETRANBER - A
RARRESTTRINERREAREERRE N
WEEIE -

Annual Report 2013



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

EERRE (&)

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The audit committee is responsible for considering the
appointment of the external auditors and also reviews any non-
audit functions performed by the external auditors for the Group,
including whether such non-audit functions could lead to any
potential material adverse effect on the Group. During the year,
the auditors performed the work of statutory audit for the year of
2013. For the year ended 31 December 2013, the remuneration
payable and paid to the auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited were as follows:

EZRTS
FEBIZ AR

Audit services
Non-audit services

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining an adequate
and effective internal control system to safeguard the Company’s
assets against unauthorised use or disposition, and to protect the
interests of shareholders of the Company.

The audit committee assumes the overall responsibility for
reviewing the adequacy and integrity of the Group’s internal
control system.

During the year, the Board has discussed and reviewed the
relevant proposals made by senior management in order to
ensure an adequate and effective system of internal control. The
Board, through the audit committee, has conducted a review of
the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Company
and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2013, which
covers all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls functions.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company assists the Board by
ensuring good information flow within the Board and that Board
policy and procedures are followed. The company secretary is
also responsible for advising the Board on governance matters.
As an employee of the Company, Mr. Wong Ho Yin, the company
secretary of the Company, has undertaken not less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training to update his skills and knowledge
in 2013.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedure for nominating a new Director

Pursuant to Article 83(2) of the articles and association of
the Company (the "Articles”), subject to the Articles and the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the Company may by
ordinary resolution elect any person to be a Director either to fill
a casual vacancy on the Board, or as an addition to the existing
Board.

Procedure for convening an extraordinary
general meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, any one or more shareholder
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition and such
meeting shall be held within 2 months from the date of deposit of
the requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

Procedure for sending enquires to the Board

Shareholders may send written enquiries or requests in respect of
their rights to the principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong and for the attention of the Company Secretary.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has established a range of communication channels
between itself and its shareholders, and investors. These include
the publication of annual, interim and quarterly reports, notices,
announcements, circulars and constitutional documents, the
Company’s website at www.joystar.com.hk and meetings with
investors and analysts.

The Company encourages all shareholders to attend the annual
general meetings to stay informed of the Group’s strategy and
goals. It provides an opportunity for direct communication
between the Board and its shareholders. The chairman of the
meeting explains the detailed procedures for conducting a poll and
then answers any questions from shareholders. The poll results
are published on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

B SR B R

RE-—EHESNER

IR A RARL IR R) ([48) ) BRI 83(2) 5 -
EEARBERBARZERART ARRTEBY
BRABRBHEMALHEES LAREELR
BERE R EEEEIIERE

ARRRBIIARENEF

RN ADRIE 58 5 - (EAT— Iz A ERIRF R
KEABB NP RARBGRBA (R T EMNERR
AIRRAERE)THZ WK - AJHEERARR
EEZRHEE2 R BEREFSARBRREIK
€ NEREAHMEBEXRMEANTE BABASA
RieE i BT M E A NETT - iRt —
CNEREFERAEARAARE  AIRFERWAL
AETRARTXERAE  MARBARER
KMATHERNEFERBARASMELNAA
BIEFAS °

MESSRXEHANER
H&%THﬁﬁF%?&i%ﬂﬂ’]iﬁgi’@i%ﬁ?%%ﬁ$
REEBTESEME  WHEARRAWE -

REEBRRERRZEE
ARRERAEERRERBREECHRIZEER
RE-FZHREFEFE PHERZTERSE
@%* NE-BHARBEXH KR AE
www joystar.com.hk R E2I&EH R AITE S -

AREBBAERREFERRBFAEG  THRASE
BrsHRBERER RRAFASRHAKEERE
FeHEERFERAER ASXIFERENRES
RETRRNFMIER - RREBFRRE(4R
] o WRBRTIBNARE S B2 88 -

Annual Report 2013



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

EERRE (&)

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Board does not aware of any changes in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2013, which give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Group. The auditors of the Company is responsible to form
an independent opinion based on the audit, on the financial
statements prepared by the Directors and report the opinion solely
to the shareholders of the Company.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and
trading of nonwoven fabric products used in automotive interior
decoration parts and other parts, trading of rubber, garment
accessories and food products.

RESULTS AND FINANCIAL POSITION

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2013 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 39 and 40.

The state of affairs of the Group and of the Company at 31
December 2013 are set out in the consolidated statement of
financial position and the statement of financial position on pages
41 to 43 respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are
set out in Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in Note 20 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of financial results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group are set out in the section headed “Summary of
Financial Information” on page 132 in this report.

RESERVES

The movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2013 are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. The movements in the reserves of
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2013 are set
out in Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2013, the Company’s reserve available for
distribution to owners of the Company comprising share premium
account amounted to approximately RMB6,631,000 (2012:
RMB4,215,000).
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DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2013.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 33.3% (2012: 64.8%)
of the total sales for the year and sales to the largest customer
accounted for approximately 10.6% (2012: 22.3%) of total sales.
Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers in aggregate
accounted for approximately 41.6% (2012: 55.7%) of the total
purchases for the year and purchases from the largest supplier
accounted for approximately 12.5% (2012: 14.5%) of total
purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders of the
Company (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
interest in the Group's five largest customers and suppliers during
the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Zhuang Yuejin

Mr. Pak Ping

Mr. Wong Ho Yin

Ms. Ruan Bixia (retired on 20 May 2013)

Mr. Ni Bin (appointed on 31 May 2013 and resigned on 21
November 2013)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Mak Wai Ho

Mr. Feng Xueben

Ms. Sung Kwan Wun (appointed on 19 August 2013)
Dr. Tang Yanfei (retired on 20 May 2013)

Pursuant to Article 83(3) and Article 84(1) of the Company’s
articles of association, Mr. Zhuang Yuejin, Mr. Pak Ping, Mr. Feng
Xueben and Ms. Sung Kwan Wun shall retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. All the retiring Directors are eligible for
re-elections.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical information of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are set out on pages 13 to 16 of this report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors, including those proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting, has a service
agreement which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Board on the basis of their experience, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are reviewed
by the remuneration committee of the Company and approved
by the Board, having regard to the relevant Director’s experience,
responsibility, workload and the time devoted to the Group; the
Company’s operating results and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
on 13 September 2010 to which the Directors and eligible
employees, among others are entitled to participate in. The
Company operates the Scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to
the success of the Group’s operations. Details of the Scheme are
set out in paragraph “Share Option Scheme” below.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest

paid individuals in the Group are set out in Notes 14 and 15 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

So far as known to the Directors, at 31 December 2013, the
interests and short positions of the Directors and chief executives
of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFO")) which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and/or short positions of which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of SFO)
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or otherwise
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, were
as follows:

Long positions in shares of the Company

Name Capacity and nature of interest
i SORERNME

Directors:

BE

Mr. Zhuang Yuejin Beneficial owner

R EnEEA

Mr. Pak Ping Beneficial owner

SRE EmEAA

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2013, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules.
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REQBRGZHFR
Approximate
Number of percentage of
ordinary shares shareholding in
held the Company
Fr¥E AL RREZ
ZBEREAE BABEDE
359,370,000 31.20%
14,910,000 1.29%

BREXEEEN R_F—=Ft+_A=+—8"
BEARFEERESTHRAERRNA R HAER
AR, - RO RERET  HERE
ERRHEHRINEI2HELRARBFEFEE
EMANEZIAR  ARBAFR LEHRAUE
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
EEERE A

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year were rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or of any other body corporate
granted to any Directors or their respective spouse or children
under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors,
their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age to
acquire such rights in the Company or any body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES OR UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

At 31 December 2013, so far as known to the Directors, the
persons (other than the Directors or chief executives of the
Company), who had, or was deemed to have interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which fall to be
disclosed to the Company in accordance with the provision of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would be
recorded in the register maintained by the Company, pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO, were as follows:

Long positions in shares of the Company

Name

A BORERNMEE

Avant Capital Management Beneficial owner
(HK) Limited

FEREER(FE)BRAA BEamEA A

Capacity and nature of interest

B EXFIEEE SN - MANFE Z AR E AR 8
TEMEFARSFEA2EBIRB T A\BRTA
BEBWEAR DR A EMEA B Z RO ERE
EMESWERN  ZEEMNTEEELITE: AR
Al EERARSREEMMB AR IRESETE
MZHBEES  RESQZEBIRH+NET
RSP AR B REMEAD R ZZSHER -

FTERRRHMALTRERT ZRHHHE
EROTFNESZIARE

RZB-—=F+"A=+—H BEFHM AT
AL (RRABREZHZDITERABBRIN R KR
B DR EE R A S RIEE S MERDIE
XVEZFE2REIDEARNARRRIKE - HIRIEE
HRHEGRIIE 336G ARAFERE LM E

HFHE

RERARGDZEFR
Approximate
Number of percentage of
ordinary shares shareholding in

held the Company

¥ EERRAREZ
ZERME BMOBEDH
107,443,000 9.33%
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
EEERE A

Save as disclosed above and under the section “DIRECTORS’
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES" INTEREST IN SECURITIES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES” on page 31 of this report, at 31
December 2013, the Directors of the Company were not aware of
any persons who had, or was deemed to have, interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company in accordance with the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO; or be recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTOR’S
INTERESTS

The Directors are not aware of any business or interest of
the Directors, the controlling shareholder and their respective
associates (as defined under the GEM Listing Rules) that compete
or may compete with the business of the Group and any other
conflict of interest which any such person has or may have with
the Group during the year.

INTEREST IN COMPETING

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in section “DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTEREST IN SECURITIES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES”
on page 31 of this report, at no time during the year was the
Company, or its subsidiaries, or its fellow subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of the Company
or any other body corporate.

BEXRAREEINEEERESTRAERE
- HEROREESNES | —EAREESN R
TE-=ZF+-A=1t—B ' ARFEFHIAE
EMALTELRPWE /RO HAERE RO P HEAR
BEFNHEGEINEXVEZE2 RE3IDEAERAK
NAEEKE - IRBFHFEAERDIE 336 KELRN
ATGFEEZTMHERIORE -

EERGNNER
RERIAFEEREAGRE  REEENARAR
AEMMBRARI CHAEEEE N BER 2
& K EE XA E A E A -

EERBFEXRBNES

KEEN EFHETAFEFNES - ERECR IR
EXENBEALT(ERRAIFERESZ EHRA) M
EAERBREREARENRE LR LA L RR
Fo N TAEZFALTERA LG EAKELRMT
A A S Em R -

BE - HEIWEARQXFAW ELHES

AREREEMHBARRAFEARERE - H
EXBEBEARBEFLETES ©

EEBAROD REEZNES
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
EEERE A

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest
practicable date prior to issue of this report, the Company has
maintained the sufficient public float under the GEM Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, except for those disclosed in Note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group had no transactions
with its related parties.

The Directors conducted review of the related party transactions
of the Group during the year and were not aware any transaction
requiring disclosure of connected transactions in accordance with
the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2013 are set out in Note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

Particulars of the retirement benefit scheme of the Group are set
out in Note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands which oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to its
existing shareholders.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the Scheme on 13 September 2010 which
will remain in force for a period of 10 years from the effective
date of the Scheme and will expire on 29 September 2020.

Under the Scheme, the Directors may at their discretion grant
options to (i) any employee of any member of the Group or any
entity in which any member of the Group holds any equity interest
(the “Invested Entity”); (ii) any executive and non-executive
Directors of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; (iii)
any supplier and customer of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; (iv) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity; (v) any shareholder of any member
of the Group or any Invested Entity or any holder of any securities
issued or proposed to be issued by any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity; or (vi) any adviser or consultant of any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity to subscribe for the
shares of the Company.

RAARERE
BRARBLAHAAGZENRRERTHAM » RARK
STEANSREREATEY  KXAFREAIER
EHRAIBHEREHZ ARFIE -

BELTRGZREBERS

REER  BREAMBERRMEI4MBREEIN K
SEEEEBETETENRS -

EXCHAREFANBETRSETEN Y
PRBEARIBRIZER ETRAREBIFRAERS
BRENZS -
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
EEE®RE A

The maximum number of shares in respect to which options may
be granted under the Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company on the date of adopting the Scheme.
The limit may be refreshed at any time provided that the new limit
must not be in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of the shareholders’ approval in
general meeting. However, the total number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other scheme of
the Company must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time. The limit of the Scheme was refreshed at
a general meeting held on 20 May 2013. At 31 December 2013,
the total number of shares available for issued under the Scheme
was 108,000,000 (2012: 36,000,000) shares, which represented
approximately 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
at that day of refreshment. The maximum number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted to any individual in
any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue
on the last date of such 12-month period unless approval of the
shareholders of the Company has been obtained in accordance
with the GEM Listing Rules. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is
payable on acceptance of the grant of an option.

Options may be exercised at any time from the date of grant of
the option to the 10th anniversary of the date of grant as may
be determined by the Directors. The exercise price is determined
by the Directors, and will not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price per share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
guotations sheets on the date of the grant of the options; (ii) the
average closing price per share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of the grant of the options; or (iii) the nominal
value of a share.

During the year, no share option was granted, exercised, expired
or lapsed and there is no outstanding share option under the
Scheme.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry with all
Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors have complied
with the code of conduct and the required standard of dealings
concerning securities transactions by the Directors during the year.

BEBEZTERE C BREEITER - Al TEITZR
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
BEESRE(HE)

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There has not been significant events took place subsequent to 31
December 2013.

AUDITORS

A resolution to re-appoint the retiring auditor, HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Zhuang Yuejin
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 21 February 2014
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HL

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA AUTOMOTIVE INTERIOR DECORATION HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Automotive Interior Decoration Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 39 to 131, which comprise the consolidated and
Company statements of financial position as at 31 December
2013, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

B 4+t F % oA R A A
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (Continued)
B ZRHENRE (&)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2013 and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hon Koon Fai, Alex
Practising Certificate Number: P05029

Hong Kong, 21 February 2014
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE_FT—=—F+_FA=+—HIFE

Revenue WA

Cost of sales SHE KA
Gross profit EF

Other income HMBA
Selling and distribution costs $HE R A AR
Share of loss of an associate FE(REEE R EBE
Administrative expenses TR
Profit from operations KRR
Finance costs A& A AR
Profit before tax BrBERTER
Income tax expense FTiS T

Profit for the year attributable to the QA F#EEABELEERF
owners of the Company

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

BEPM BV FERB AU SR R B IS IRER A — 8D -

Note
Bt

8

21

10
11

12

2013 2012
—2-=F —FF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARBTT
543,377 166,906
(492,565) (138,500)
50,812 28,406
25,362 4,776
(9,020) (7.316)
(1,371) —
(15,520) (11,840)
50,263 14,026
(2,637) (1,731)
47,626 12,295
(4,582) (1,497)
43,044 10,798
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)

REBERRHEHMEEIKER(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive loss for the year,
net of income tax:

Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:

& BRI

FEHMZEHEE 1K

Bk

HEUEHSBEZHBHMNER

Exchange differences on translating foreign #E 8N EFS 2 [E K Z%E

operations

Total other comprehensive loss
for the year

Total comprehensive income for the
year attributable to the owners
of the Company

Earnings per share
— Basic

— Diluted

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Note
k3

13

13

2013 2012
—E—-=F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
43,044 10,798
(2,218) (85)
(2,218) (85)
40,826 10,713
RMB RMB
AR# AR

3.8 cents 7

2.0 cents &

3.8 cents 7

2.0 cents &




At 31 December 2013
RZF—=F+=ZA=4+—H

ASSETS BE

Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE -~ BRE&EE
Prepaid land lease payments TEfT L E IR
Deferred tax assets IREFIIRE B
Interest in an associate B & A R AR i
Goodwill EES

Current assets REEE
Prepaid land lease payments TS L E IR
Inventories FE
Trade receivables JEWE 5 5/1E
Note receivables JE UL 2= 15

Prepayments, deposits and other FERTRRIE ~ e REAM
receivables FEYRIE

Held-for-trading investments HIEEBERE

Pledged bank deposit BHERRITFR

Cash and bank balances e RIRTTH
Total assets EERR
EQUITY R

Capital and reserves attributable to the KA T EEAEBEERRHE
owners of the Company

Share capital fig A
Reserves &
Total equity ERER

Note
k3

18
19
37
21
22

19
23
24

25
26
27
28

29
31

2013 2012
—EE-=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETR ARET T
45,843 40,146
2,844 2,917
1,247 1,036
4,895 —
51,099 —
105,928 44,099
73 73
21,826 15,555
75,962 64,678
13,108 8,730
26,027 21,184
27,141 4,405
6,114
51,474 82,132
221,725 196,757
327,653 240,856
94,829 89,086
144,894 98,908
239,723 187,994
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

RE BN R (E)

At 31 December 2013
RZF—=F+=ZA=4+—H

LIABILITIES aE
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade payables e E 5 FRIE
Accruals and other payables FET & FA I B FE T 3R
Bank borrowings RITIEK
Bank overdrafts HRITEX
Promissory note EINES7:
Tax payable FEI A1
Total equity and liabilities EakBEeE
Net current assets REBEEFHE
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRHEE

Approved by the Board of Directors on 21 February 2014 and
signed on its behalf by:

Zhuang Yuejin
HRE
Director

EE

2013 2012

—EE-=F —E——F

Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
k3 ARETR ARETTT
32 20,323 17,410
15 33 16,189 5,397
34 29,055 29,500
35 2,959 —
36 15,456 —
3,948 555

87,930 52,862

327,653 240,856

133,795 143,895

239,723 187,994

RIZB—ME_A -+ —HAEEFHELH T

ATHEESE

Pak Ping
=Ea

Director

EF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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At 31 December 2013
RZF—=F+=ZA=4+—H

2013 2012
—_E—-= —E—-—F
Note RMB’'000 RMB’'000
iz ARET ARET T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B RARRRE 20 50,022 17,872
Current assets REEE
Prepayments and deposits ERRERES 25 62 675
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG ] 20 78,280 37,729
Cash and bank balances IRE RIRTTARS 28 1,521 53,124
79,863 91,528
Total assets EEMEE 129,885 109,400
EQUITY ER
Capital and reserves attributable to the 2D FHEH ABILEA R G5
owners of the Company
Share capital % Zx 29 94,829 89,086
Reserves ] 31 19,516 19,760
Total equity ERERE 114,345 108,846
LIABILITIES =K
Current liabilities REBAE
Accruals and other payables FEET B R N E A fEN A 33 340 554
Amounts due to subsidiaries XN ENGIE R E] 20 15,200 —
Total liabilities BEAE 15,540 554
Total equity and liabilities ERRABAER 129,885 109,400
Net current assets REBEETFE 64,323 90,974
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERRBER 114,345 108,846

Approved by the Board of Directors on 21 February 2014 and
signed on its behalf by:

Zhuang Yuejin
HRE
Director

EBEFE

R-ZB-—MFE_A -+ —HARAEEFHELH T
ATHRERES:

Pak Ping
=R

Director

EBEFE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE—_F—=—F+_A=+—HIFEZE

At 1 January 2012

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive loss for the year

NZF-ZF-F-H

EREN
ERAMZERR

Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year £E 2 (B&) /Mix 28

Placing of shares
Share issue expenses
Transfer to statutory reserve

At 31 December 2012 and 1 January 2013

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive loss for the year

EERN
ROZTRX
ERELERE

EREN
FREAMZERR

Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year £E 2 (5#8) /%

Issue of shares
Share issue expenses
Transfer to statutory reserve

At 31 December 2013

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

B8 PR B9 P SRR K ULt BB HmE D -

Bl
OEGED
SREERRRE

R-B-ZH+ZR=1-H

Foreign

currency
Share Share Merger translation Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve profits equity
R Rita® ARE  PRERE REER B
RIMB'000 RIMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RIMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR  ARBTRL  ARETR ARETL  ARBTR
20,552 22,694 5,992 2,657 52,998 112,574
- - - - 10,798 10,798
_ - - (85) - (85)
- - - (85) 10,798 10,713
68,534 - - - - 68,534
- (3,827) - - - (3,827)
- - - - (746) -
89,086 18,867 5,992 2572 63,050 187,994
- - - — 43,044 43,044
- - - (2,218) - (2,218)
- - - (2,218) 43,044 40,826
5,743 5,168 - - - 1091
- (8) - - - @®
- - - - (2,101) -
94,829 24,007 5,992 354 103,993 239,723
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE—_F—=—F+_A=+—HIFEZE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Interest expenses
Finance lease charges
Interest income
Impairment loss recognised on trade receivables
Inventories written off
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Realised gain on held-for-trading investments
Unrealised gain on held-for-trading investments
Share of loss of an associate
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Operating profit before working capital changes
Increase in inventories
Increase in trade receivables
Increase in note receivables
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables
(Decrease)/increase in accruals and other payables

Net cash (used in)/generated from operations
Interest paid

Finance lease charges paid

Tax refund

Income taxes paid

Net cash (used in)/generated from operating
activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Addition of construction in progress
Purchase of held-for-trading investments
Increase in pledged bank deposit
Proceeds from disposal of held-for-trading
investments
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Net cash outflow on acquisition of subsidiaries
Investment in an associate

Net cash used in investing activities

2013 2012
—E-=F T F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETIT
BETHELENRSRE
B %54 A g 47,626 12,295
HUTEBEELRAE -

B 2,637 1,724

BEMREER — 7

FEWA (32) (28)

P E 5 IBERA R EEE 198 117

15 & 8H 26 410

ME - BRERRETE 4,828 4,479

REEBERENEER/KE (3.209) (1,122)

FHEBEBEHREMRER KA (20,110) (1,725)

FE(REEE R RBE 1,371 —

81+ 1+ 0 F0 & FE B 5 73 73

HEME - BEREBEBE 1 34
EEECEHRNLE BT 33,409 16,264
FEEm (587) (2,159)
JE Uy B8 5 SRIE S N (4,187) (4,686)
FEU SR IR 0 (4,378) (5,330)
BARIE - Be REMEKE

B () 12,529 (5,926)
ENESHECRLD) /& (13,817) 7,036
T ERREMEARECRD)

0 (23,030) 447
e (ATA) /FT3E & F8 (61) 5,646
EAFE (1,881) (1,724)
ENRERESEA — (7)
R 297 283
EATFTEH (2,076) (3,430)
SER (TR ) /T3R5

(3,721) 768
RETHELENBESHE
REEES 32 28
BEYE  BERE&E (5,575) (264)
FREIRARAE (4,071) (2,342)
BEREEERE (7,687) (7,899)
BRI R 1T 17 5RIE 0 (6,114) —
HEBIEEEREMSRIE

7.850 6,341
HEWE  BEREEATERE

2 200

W RE B A R IR &  F 58 (4,459) —
REE R BIMIRE (6,266) —
RAREMARS F5E (26,288) (3,936)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
mERERER(A)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE—_F—=—F+_A=+—HIFEZE

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RETHELENRERE
Proceeds from borrowings EESGIECE ¢
Repayment of borrowings BEEX

Share issuing expenses & 15 21T 2
Repayment of finance lease payables BRENREBENE
Proceeds from issue of shares BT RS R

Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities B & & E (T ) PIEIR S H5E

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash RERBLEEYWORD), /N
equivalents FEE

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of REVWRERBELZEY
the year

Effect of foreign currency exchange rate changes INESTE RSB L&

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the RERKNEESRBEESEEY
year

Analysis of the balances of cash and cash ReRBEEEYESRDW
equivalents
Cash and bank balances Re RBITHES
Bank overdrafts WITHEX

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

BEFM BV EERB A U S ir R BTG IRR — &b -
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2013 2012
—E-—=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTFT
28,234 48,900
(29,810) (44,400)
(8) (3,827)

— (209)

— 68,534

(1,584) 68,998
(31,593) 65,830
82,132 16,387
(2,024) (85)
48,515 82,132
51,474 82,132
(2,959) —
48,515 82,132




For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE_FT—=—F+_FA=+—HIFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 9
December 2009 with limited liability. The registered office
of the Company is located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.
The address of the Group’'s principal place of business is
located at No. 28 Xinfeng Road, Xinfeng Industrial Park,
Fanggian Town, New District, Wuxi City, Jiangsu Province,
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and
sale of nonwoven fabric products used in automotive interior
decoration parts and other parts, and trading of rubber,
garment accessories and food products.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB") and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousands, except when otherwise indicated.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 29 September 2010.

—REHR
ARRRZZEZNF+ZANBRFAEHS
AL ABRAR c NARGFEMPFEREN
B Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
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TEEFRK 2855 -
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WERARBEERE  RXEMHIESR -
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JG ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REVBRRMEE(F

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
In the current year, the Group has adopted all of the new
and revised standards, amendments and interpretations
("new HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") that are relevant
to its operations and effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013.

HKFRS 1 (Amendments) Government Loan

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 Consolidated Financial Statements,
and HKFRS 12 Joint Arrangements and
(Amendments) Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities: Transition Guidance

HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
(as revised in 2011)

HKAS 27 Separate Financial Statements
(as revised in 2011)

HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint
(as revised in 2011) Ventures

HKAS 1 (Amendments) Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

HKFRSs (Amendments)  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2009-2011 Cycle

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine

Except for the amendments to HKAS 1, the application of
these new HKFRSs has no material impact on the results and
the financial position of the Group.

FERHIREETERMBREER
(TR BIREZER )
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BRPBHREEAE 15 BFER
(BRTA)

BEMBMELNFE 105 GRalBRE

BRPBREELE 115 SELH

BARPBREEAE 125 REXEMERD

Rz

R BREELE 135k A VENE

EEVBREENE 7R KE — BHDH

(1EETA) BENMEREE
BRUBREER RABEmE
F105% - BEMK BERHNEE
WELRNFE 1157 NEAE R
BRI EER & EEES

F 125 (BETAN)

BEAGEAERIE 1957 EEEF
(ZZ——FL&IB5T)
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BAEEFE 15 Hip2mEW R A

(EFTA) SOERT]

BERPBHmEER —ETNEFE-TF

(1EETA) ——FRABEL
BTG R E LR K
FEHGE

AR (AR BEREREZT BRABRSLEERR
Bg) —2BF205% B SRR A

BRAEEBEFERIE 1 REFTAIN - EBALEH
RIBAEMBHREEAN IS HAEENEE LY
BRREREARTE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MR R M (A

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE_FT—=—F+_FA=+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

The nature of the impending changes in accounting policy on
adoption of the amendments to HKAS 1 is described below.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of
Items of Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

The amendments to HKAS 1 introduce new terminology
for the statement of comprehensive income and income
statement. Under the amendments to HKAS 1, a statement
of comprehensive income is renamed as a statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income and an income
statement is renamed as a statement of profit or loss. The
amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in either a single
statement or in two separate but consecutive statements.
However, the amendments to HKAS 1 require items of other
comprehensive income to be grouped into two categories
in the other comprehensive income section: (a) items that
will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss and (b)
items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
when specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of
other comprehensive income is required to be allocated on
the same basis. The amendments do not change the option
to present items of other comprehensive income either
before tax or net of tax.

FERHIREETERMBREER
(TR BRELER ] 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REVBRRMEE(F

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

The Group has not applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these consolidated financial statements:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’

HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 Hedge Accounting and amendments
and HKAS 39 to HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and
(Amendments) HKAS 397

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 Investment Entities’
and HKAS 27
(Amendments)

HKAS 32 (Amendments) Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities'

HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets'

HKAS 39 (Amendments) Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge
Accounting'

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies'

HKAS 19 (Amendments) Defined Benefits Plans: Employee
Contributions®

HKFRSs (Amendments)  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle?

HKFRSs (Amendments)  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle?

effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014,
with earlier application permitted

effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with
earlier application permitted

no mandatory effective date yet determined but is available for
adoption

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS
9 was amended in 2010 to include requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REVBRRMEE(F

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement to be subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost
at the end of subsequent reporting periods. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair values at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not
held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with
only dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes
in fair value of financial liabilities attributable to
changes in the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Previously,
under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in
the fair value of the financial liability designated as fair
value through profit or loss was presented in profit or
loss.

The date when entities would be required to apply HKFRS
9 was previously stated at 1 January 2015. This mandatory
effective date has been removed to provide sufficient time
for preparers of financial statements to make the transition
to the new requirements, which will now become effective
from a later date yet to be announced.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MR R M (A

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE_FT—=—F+_FA=+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

The directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in
the future may have a significant impact on the amounts
reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities (e.g. the Group’s available-for-sale
investments may have to be measured at fair value at the
end of subsequent reporting periods, with changes in the
fair value being recognised in profit or loss). Regarding the
Group’'s financial assets, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review has
been completed.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 and HKAS 32 —
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities and the related disclosures

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application
issues relating to the offset of financial assets and financial
liabilities requirements. Specifically, the amendments clarify
the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right of
set-off” and “simultaneous realisation and settlement”.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities to disclose
information about rights of offset and related arrangements
(such as collateral posting requirements) for financial
instruments under an enforceable master netting agreement
or similar arrangement.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and interim
periods within those annual periods. The disclosures should
be provided retrospectively for all comparative periods.
However, the amendments to HKAS 32 are not effective until
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014, with
retrospective application required.

The directors anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKAS 32 and HKFRS 7 may result in more
disclosures being made with regard to offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities in the future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MR R M (A

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE_FT—=—F+_FA=+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 36 — Impairment of
Assets: Recoverable Amount Disclosure for
Non-Financial Assets

The amendments to HKAS 36 are to remove certain
unintended disclosure requirements which may be introduced
by the consequential amendments to HKAS 36 when HKFRS
13 was issued. Furthermore, these amendments require the
disclosure of additional information about the fair value
measurement when the recoverable amount of impaired
assets is based on fair value less costs of disposal. The
amendments to HKAS 36 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014. Earlier application
is permitted. However, an entity may not apply those
amendments in periods (including comparative periods) in
which it does not also apply HKFRS 13.

The directors anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKAS 36 will have no material impact on the
Group's financial performance and positions.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011) — Investment Entities

The Investment Entities amendments apply to a particular
class of business that qualify as investment entities. The
term ‘investment entity’ refers to an entity whose business
purpose is to invest funds solely for returns from capital
appreciation, investment income or both. An investment
entity must also evaluate the performance of its investments
on a fair value basis. Such entities could include private
equity organisations, venture capital organisations, pension
funds, sovereign wealth funds and other investment funds.

Under HKFRS 10, reporting entities were required
to consolidate all investees that they control (i.e. all
subsidiaries). Preparers and users of financial statements have
suggested that consolidating the subsidiaries of investment
entities does not result in useful information for investors.
Rather, reporting all investments, including investments
in subsidiaries, at fair value, provides the most useful and
relevant information.

In response to this, the amendments provide an exception
to the consolidation requirements in HKFRS 10 and require
investment entities to measure particular subsidiaries at fair
value through profit or loss, rather than consolidate them.
The amendments also set out disclosure requirements for
investment entities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MR R M (A

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE_FT—=—F+_FA=+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011) — Investment Entities
(Continued)

The amendments are effective from 1 January 2014 with
early adoption permitted in order to allow investment entities
to apply the amendments at the same time they first apply
the rest of HKFRS 10.

The directors anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKFRS 27 (2011)
will have no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions.

Amendments to HKAS 39 — Novation of
Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge
Accounting

The narrow-scope amendments will allow hedge accounting
to continue in a situation where a derivative, which has been
designated as a hedging instrument, is novated to effect
clearing with a central counterparty as a result of laws or
regulation, if specific conditions are met (in this context, a
novation indicates that parties to a contract agree to replace
their original counterparty with a new one).

This relief has been introduced in response to legislative
changes across many jurisdictions that would lead to the
widespread novation of over-the-counter derivatives. These
legislative changes were prompted by a G20 commitment to
improve transparency and regulatory oversight of over-the-
counter derivatives in an internationally consistent and non-
discriminatory way.

Similar relief will be included in HKFRS 9.

The amendments will be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014 and applied
retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted.

The directors anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKAS 39 will have no material impact on the
Group's financial performance and positions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MR R M (A

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE_FT—=—F+_FA=+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HK (IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies

HK (IFRIC) — Int 21 is an interpretation of HKAS 37 and
addresses how an entity should account for liabilities to pay
levies imposed by governments, other than income taxes, in
its financial statements. The principal question raised was
about when the entity should recognise a liability to pay a
levy. It clarifies that the obligating event that gives rise to a
liability to pay a levy is the activity described in the relevant
legislation that triggers the payment of the levy. HK(IFRIC) —
Int 21 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2014 with earlier application permitted.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, which is a
collective term that includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations (the
“Interpretations”) issued by the HKICPA and accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong, in addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM
Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis, except certain financial instruments
are stated at their fair values. Historical cost is generally
based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

o)

PA RS SRR M AL (A

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgments
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgments made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of material
adjustment in the next year are discussed in Note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities (including
special purpose entities) controlled by the Company (its
subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
effective date of acquisition and up to the effective date
of disposal, as appropriate. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests have a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MR R M (A

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interests. Where certain assets of the subsidiary are measured
at revalued amounts or fair values and the related cumulative
gain or loss has been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity, the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity are accounted for as if the Company had directly
disposed of the related assets (i.e. reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred directly to retained earnings). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a jointly controlled entity.

Business combination

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combination (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after
reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as
a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified
in another HKFRS.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combination (Continued)

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and included as part of the consideration transferred in
a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments against goodwill. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period”
(which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date)
about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify
as measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39, or
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is a company in which the Company, directly
or indirectly, controls more than one half of the voting
power; has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies; to appoint or remove the majority of the members
of the board of directors; or to cast majority of votes at the
meetings of the board of directors.

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of financial position at cost less any impairment
loss. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

o)

5ot 75 SR AR B R (AR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally accompanying
a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting
rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying
amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor's
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of
acquisition. The Group’s investment in associates includes
goodwill identified on acquisition.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in other comprehensive income
is recognised in other comprehensive income with a
corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in the
associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates
the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value
and recognises the amount adjacent to share of profit/(loss)
of associates in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are
recognised in the Group’s financial statements only to the
extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

W

B B R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2013

BRE T =F+_A=1—HIFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts
and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyers, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using effective interest method.

Technical support income is recognised when the technical
support services are rendered.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the leases transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance assets are recognised as assets
of the Group at their fair value at the inception of the
lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor
is included in the consolidated statement of financial
position as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the
lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are
charged directly to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

Rental payable under operating leases are charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the terms
of the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an
incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised
as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a
straight-line basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception
of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid land
lease payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis. When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, the entire
lease is generally classified as a finance lease and accounted
for as property, plant and equipment.

Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an
increase in the future economic benefits expected to be
obtained from the use of the property, plant and equipment,
the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that
asset.

FESTBER®E)

BRAEELH

EHERR I REFEY - BRIFBAMES
BRAZEHEEZBELT  BEEESER
REME)  BAXEEREERMONES
REFTAENBARR D Ak mHES @B R
SEETHNE  BUAESHI D BEARE
FEEHE - A E - SEEEFAERE
E—REFENF) DiREERRKEEN T
wEHY REFHORHERZNIBH A FEL
Bl ELwREFED ZHEEHDE o

HeER S D ECHER A - RIS EMEN
HETwmERBIERITRN LI EE KA
RERAMBIRRARINEE - WIRHEFRAER
EMESH o fWNBETT SEM ) Be £ 3 A T ER 0 Y
HEHE BEEE-ROBEAREHEE I
1ERYE - BB RZHIEE -

FrBEM% ~ B MR IRACAR R 5t i 8 KRl
BEEIER -

BENKABRRBREERREMSEEENH
BN B E R ERE B EREAA
WE - BB MREBRABERELNF
WEERRERY - —RREEHEALREE
m R EMEERERTIR o HWAE R BN %
AXHEEREHARERYE - BERRKE
PRASHA B M EIE 0 - BIRZIAES B E AL
RZBENMIMAE » Y% - BER&RBZIT
EEMGF I ERFRERERERERE
VAR SHEL R ©

Annual Report 2013
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property,
plant and equipment, using the straight line method, over
their estimated useful lives. The principal useful lives are as
follows:

Building 30 years
Plant and machinery 12 years
Motor vehicles 8 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 6 years
Leasehold improvements 5 years

The useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents leasehold improvements
under construction and plant and machinery pending
installation, and is stated at cost less impairment losses.
Depreciation begins when the relevant asset are available for
use.

The gain or loss arising from disposal of an asset is
determined as the difference between the net sale proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset and is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average basis.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
all production overhead expenditure, and where appropriate,
subcontracting charges. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
all estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market and are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment. An
allowance for impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of receivables. The amount of the allowance
is the difference between the carrying amount of the
receivables and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition. The amount of the allowance is recognised
in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods
and recognised in profit or loss when an increase in the
recoverable amount of the receivables can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, subject to the restriction that the carrying
amount of the receivables at the date the impairment is
reversed shall not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment of assets (other than goodwiill,
intangible assets with indefinite lives)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable and
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the
balance sheet liabilities method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences, and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of the other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
except when it relates to items charged or credited directly or
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the entity intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities
on a net basis.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised immediately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables and financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“financial assets at FVTPL"). The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MR R (A

For the year ended 31 December 2013

EE—
3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
asset is either held for trading or it is designated as at
FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling it in the near term; or

. on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

FESTBER®E)

SBMIAM)
2HEEE)
BEFIE
85Ty E E AR T B AR B
BRI S BRI B A 70 - BRI (R
BT AN R (ER) REREN -
s R RB SR (BIEBREEFIZ B
FERNREUBRRAEER - RHRAR
A58 07 ) SRR 25 41 SRR RS OB
EFEAFIE -

BoBERRATEREBRIIBENSREEIN -
BB TANRATHZE R S ERER -

B FERBzIEN M EE

EERMEE/AFFEIIRER/RAFENE
@Ak AIDBARAFEREBREIIRK -

1]

\\

EREER TIBERTORARHEEER

HEZRERNOHALEMBA © 3%

o RYUISHERE  HAAKEHAREREN
EHEMEMTAEEN —BOKAERAR
M BN BERER %

o ERHEELAEHHTAMNIIETA -

CREAERIFEESRMEERIN TR TS
BERTROTHREEERRATERERT
BE :

. ZETHBRRAERS TS HBR M
E_Xﬁ&n HEE’]T @UE jz

—E-ZFER 67



68

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

W
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

BRE T =F+_A=1—HIFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

o the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits
the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial
asset and is included in the “other income”.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. At the end of each reporting period
subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses.

An impairment loss is recognised in consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and
is measured as the difference between the assets’ carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods when
an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment losses
were recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment losses
reversed do not exceed what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment losses not been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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PA RS SRR M AL (A

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are generally
classified into other financial liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted in respect of financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are initially
measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at
FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

. the amount of the obligation under the contract, as
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and

o the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with
the revenue recognition policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

W

B B R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2013

BRE T =F+_A=1—HIFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised directly in equity is recognised in consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities are removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid or payable is recognised in consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Current assets and liabilities

Current assets are expected to be realised within twelve
months of the end of the reporting period or in the normal
course of the Group’s operating cycle. Current liabilities are
expected to be settled within twelve months of the end of
the reporting period or in the normal course of the Group’s
operating cycle.

Contingent liabilities and contingent
assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events that
is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount
of obligation cannot be measured reliably. A contingent
liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable,
they will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements when an
inflow of economic benefits is probable. When inflow is
virtually certain, an asset is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MR R M (A

For the year ended 31 December 2013

HE—F—

ZFEFH=F—HIFEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

i.

ii.

iii.

Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of each
of the companies now comprising the Group are
measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the company operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Renminbi, which is the
Company’s presentation currency and the functional
currency of the principal operating subsidiary of the
Group. The functional currency of the Company
is Hong Kong dollars. The directors consider that
choosing Renminbi as the presentation currency best
suits the needs of the shareholders and investors.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities are reported as part of their fair
value gain or loss.

Group companies

The results and financial positions of all the companies
now comprising the Group (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency
as follows:

(@) Assets and liabilities are translated at the closing
rate;

(b) Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates; and

(c)  All resulting exchange differences are recognised
as a separate component of equity.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

W
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

BRE T =F+_A=1—HIFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations, and
of borrowings and other currency instruments designated
as hedges of such investments, are taken to owners’ equity.
When a foreign operation is sold, exchange differences that
were recorded in equity are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash in hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within
three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to
settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the
time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MR R M (A

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

As stipulated by the rules and regulations of the PRC,
the Company’s subsidiaries registered in the PRC are
required to contribute to a state-sponsored retirement
plan for all its PRC employees at certain percentages
of the basic salaries predetermined by the local
governments. The state-sponsored retirement plan is
responsible for the entire retirement benefit obligations
payable to retired employees and the Group has no
further obligations for the actual retirement benefit
payments or other post-retirement benefits beyond the
annual contributions.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result
of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal
plan which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

o)

PA RS SRR M AL (A

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants that become receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type of class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

o)

5ot 75 SR AR B R (AR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit
or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets are impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been impacted.

For financial assets, other than those at fair value through
profit or loss, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

(b)  default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

(c) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

(d) the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period of 7 to 90 days, observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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5ot 75 SR AR B R (AR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MR R M (A

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based payment arrangements

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value of
services received is determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the date of grant and is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to retained earnings.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(1) A person or entity is preparing the financial statements
of the Group;

(2) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

A M B |RME(F)

For the year ended 31 December 2013

BHE—F—

ZFEFH=F—HIFEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(3)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
also related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (2).

A person identified in (2)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction
when there is a transfer of resources or obligations between
related parties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

W

B B R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2013

BRE T =F+_A=1—HIFE
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

AND JUDGMENTS

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies which
are described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group makes impairment of trade receivables based on
assessments of the recoverability of the trade receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each debtor. Impairment arises where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be collectible. The identification of bad and doubtful
debts requires the use of judgment and estimates. Where
the actual result is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying value of the trade
receivables and doubtful debt expenses in the reporting
period in which such estimate has been changed.

Useful lives of property,
equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation charges for the Group’s
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions. The
Group will revise the depreciation charge where useful lives
are different to those previously estimated, or it will write-
off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets
that have been abandoned or sold.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

o)

PA RS SRR M AL (A

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (Continued)

Income taxes and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in different
jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in determining
the provision for income tax. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers
to be probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax losses can
be utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.

Impairment of non-current assets

If a triggering event occurs indicating that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable, an assessment
of the carrying amountof that asset will be performed.
Triggering events include significant adverse changes in
the market value of an asset, changes in the business
or regulatory environment, or certain legal events. The
interpretation of such events requires judgment from
management with respect to whether such an event has
occurred. Upon the occurrence of triggering events, the
carrying amounts of non-current assets are reviewed to
assess whether their recoverable amounts have declined
below their carrying amounts. The recoverable amount is
the present value of estimated net future cash flows which
the Group expects to generate from the future use of the
asset, plus the assets residual value on disposal. Where the
recoverable amount of non-current assets is less than its
carrying value, an impairment loss is recognised to write the
assets down to its recoverable amount.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment. Determining whether goodwill is impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash
generating units to which goodwill has been allocated.
The value in use calculation requires the management to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the
cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of the future cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REVBRRMEE(F

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5. @I A
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) EWITEDE
The Group The Company
rEE b NG|
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —E-——-F ZEBE-=F E——-F
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTRE AR%®TR AR%BTT
Financial assets: SREE
Fair value through profit or loss ?E’A?@E’\Ta £ 5188 27,141 4,405 — —
Loans and receivables Bk e W kA
(including cash and cash (@%iﬁﬁ&
equivalents) REeEEW) 149,031 157,994 80,429 90,853
Financial liabilities: tRMEE:
Amortised cost BEE AR 83,982 52,307 15,540 554
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BIERREEEZEREEK

and policies

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk and
fair value interest rate risks and price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance.

Management regularly manages the financial risks of
the Group. Because of the simplicity of the financial
structure and the current operations of the Group,
no major hedging activities are undertaken by
management.

There has been no change to the types of the Group’s
exposure in respect of financial instruments or the
manner in which it manages and measures the risks.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REVBRRMEE(F

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk

Foreign currency risk

(i)

(i)

Exposure to foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in the People’s
Republic of China (the "“PRC"”) and Hong Kong
and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to Renminbi (“RMB"”), Hong Kong
dollars (“HKD") and United States dollars
("USD"). Foreign exchange risk arises from
future commercial transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations. The Company’s management do
not expect the net foreign currency risk from
these activities to be significant and hence, the
Group and the Company do not presently hedge
the foreign exchange risks. The Group and
the Company periodically review liquid assets
and liabilities held in currencies other than the
functional currencies of the respective subsidiaries
to evaluate its foreign exchange risk exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2013, the Group has minimal
exposure to foreign currency risk with respect
to HKD as it is the functional currencies of
the respective subsidiaries in which their
business transactions, assets and liabilities are
denominated.

At 31 December 2013, if USD had strengthened/
weakened by 5% (2012: 5%) against RMB with
all other variables held constant, the Group's
profit for the year and total equity would have
been approximately RMB660,000 (2012: Nil)
higher/lower, mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on USD-denominated
monetary assets and monetary liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

RE B R R (A

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk

(i) Exposure to interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in
market interest rate relates primarily to its bank
deposits and interest-bearing bank borrowings
and bank overdrafts. Interest-bearing bank
borrowings and bank overdrafts at floating rates

expose the Group to interest rate risk.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps
to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.
However, the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.

(i) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2013, if interest rates at the
date had been 100 basis points higher/lower with
all other variables held constant, the Group's
profit for the year would decrease/increase by
RMB293,000 (2012: RMB295,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure as result
of increase/decrease interest expense on bank
borrowings and bank overdrafts net off with

interest income from bank deposits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

A M B |RME(F)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE_FT—=—F+_FA=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

5. TRIE#E)

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b)

and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
Other price risk

(i) Exposure to other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly
through its investment. The Group currently
does not have a hedging policy in respect of the
risk exposure. In addition, the management of
the Group would monitor the price risk and will
consider hedging the risk exposure should the
need arise.

(i) Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based
on the exposure to price risk of held-for-trading
investments at the end of the reporting period.
If the prices of the held-for-trading investments
had been 10% higher/lower, profit for the
year ended 31 December 2013 would increase/
decrease by approximately RMB2,714,000 (2012:
RMB441,000). This is mainly due to the changes
in fair value of held-for-trading investments.

Credit risk

The carrying amount of the cash and bank balances,
trade receivables included in the consolidated
statements of financial position represents the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to the
Group’s financial assets.

The Group has certain exposure to credit risk as the
trade receivables from the five largest customers as
at 31 December 2013 represented 54% (2012: 69%)
of total trade receivables, while 15% (2012: 20%) of
the total trade receivables were due from the largest
single customer. It has policies in place to ensure that
sales are made to customers with an appropriate credit
history.

Annual Report 2013
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REVBRRMEE(F

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited
because the counterparties are international and state-
owned banks with good reputation.

The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risk associated with its
financial assets.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. The
Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves, by continuously monitoring forecast and
actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of
financial assets and liabilities.

At 31 December 2013, the Group has unutilised
banking facilities of approximately RMB23,086,000
(2012: Nil).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tables below have been drawn up based
on the contractual maturities of the undiscounted
financial liabilities including interest that will accrue to
those liabilities except where the Group are entitled
and intends to repay the liability before its maturity.

Specifically, bank loans with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the earliest time band regardless
of the probability of the banks choosing to exercise
their rights within one year after the reporting date.
The maturity analysis for other non-derivative financial
liabilities is prepared based on the scheduled repayment
dates.

5.

E@MITAE#E)

(b)

BREBEEBRRRBEEE)

EEmE (&)
MR ZET REERFNBERLES
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R-ZTZ—=ZF+-A=+—8 K&EE
BAREFARITRIE X AR 23,086,000
T(ZE——F &) -

T%*iZEEIJEH$ ﬂ#ﬁi@%ﬂﬁ%ﬁ@
HRTANIHMBER - ZRBERPERE
BmAafEs %’]ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ% CBRZEAREDN
FEET A B (REEAE LA B EDHAE
BEERIN) -

BREms  THR\ITEENRREASE
—FRTEE EiEﬂZ—I e BERE
KEBGRZRT qu)\E*?rE-rfx °
ﬁﬁﬂ#miﬁm‘iﬁﬁZ@Jﬁﬂ\ BT
RIEBTEERBBRR -

“E-=HER

85



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REVBRRMEE(F

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE_FT—=—F+_FA=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2013
The Group

Non-derivative financial liabilities #{T£4®E%E

Trade payables ERB5HE

Accruals and other payables st B REMERNTE
Bank borrowings RITER

Bank overdrafts ROEX

Promissory note EOES

The Company

Non-derivative financial liabilities {74 4REE

Accruals and other payables R ERRAMENFE
Amounts due to subsidiaries ENHBARTE

86

Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
MEFH
BR=

%

6.0%
5.0%
8.3%

Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
MEFH
BRAE

%

E@MITAE#E)

(b) MBEREEBERRBEE)

REBELEE(E)
R=ZB-—Z=F+=A=+—H
REME
On demand Total Total
or within Over undiscounted carrying
1 year 1 year cash flow amount
EZER KRR
PR-F —FhE hELR RELE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR
20,323 - 20,323 20,323
16,189 - 16,189 16,189
30,497 - 30,497 29,055
2,959 - 2,959 2,959
16,242 - 16,242 15,456
86,210 - 86,210 83,982
VAN
On demand Total Total
or within Over undiscounted carrying
1 year 1 year cash flow amount
EZER KRR
DR-F —EHE hELR RE&E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARET TR ARBTR ARBT R
340 - 340 340
15,200 - 15,200 15,200
15,540 - 15,540 15,540
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MR R (A

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 5. @I A
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) MEEKREBREERBKE)
and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) nBHELmE(E)
At 31 December 2012 RZF-—ZF+ZA=+—H
The Group FEE
Weighted
average Total Total
effective within Over  undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1 year 1 year cash flow amount
METH RUERES
ERAE DR—F —ENE mERE BRER
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTT ARBTTL ARBTT

Non-derivative financial liabilities T4 ¢RER

Trade payables ERESHE - 17,410 - 17,410 17,410
Accruals and other payables EAERREMENTE - 5,397 - 5,397 5,397
Bank borrowings BITER 6.4% 30,445 — 30,445 29,500
53,252 — 53,252 52,307
The Company i/ |
Weighted
average Total Total
effective within Over  undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1 year 1 year cash flow amount
MEFH AERES
BRA% SR —EH neEE SHEME
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTT ARETR ARBTT

Non-derivative financial liabilities #{T£4REE
Accruals and other payables T ERREMENTIE - 554 - 554 554
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REVBRRMEE(F

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative instruments)
with standard terms and conditions and traded
on active liquid markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid prices and ask
prices respectively;

the fair values of derivative instruments are
calculated using quoted prices. Where such prices
are not available, a discounted cash flow analysis
is performed using the applicable yield curve for
the duration of the instruments for non-optional
derivatives;

the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities (excluding those described
above) are determined in accordance with
generally pricing models based on discounted
cash flow analysis.

Fair value measurements recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial
position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to
3 based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable:

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices); and

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs
for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

5. TRIE#E)
(¢) EMIEZAFE
SRMEERSMEBI ATEIRUT

EE :

(i)

(ii)

(iii)
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FiE

TTETANAFERABERT
HoMARESABERS AKX
JEHIROTAT A Z S8 MAE A
EEHREEMBRRASARON -

HieREERERABNAF
BOAERTAERRIN) THEREEER
ReRnoTRE-—REBEAE
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RELHBRREEZ S A FEH

=
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DRER—E=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REVBRRMEE(F

For the year ended 31 December 2013
E T E—CFF =1 —HIFFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 5.

(c) Fair value of financial instruments

(Continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial

position (Continued)

At 31 December 2013
The Group

Financial assets
Held for trading-listed equity
securities

At 31 December 2012
The Group

Financial assets
Held for trading-listed equity
securities

E@MITAE#E)
(c) ERMIBECAFEME)

RELHBRRFERES A FE

B(#)

R-E—=F+=-A=+—8H

£33
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
& AI— A= HA= &t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARETR AR%®TR AR¥®TR AR%Tx
ERMEE
BIEEE ETMRAESH
27,141 — — 27,141
RZE——-F+=ZA=+—H
AEE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FHI— FRI= FR= A&t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREFTT AR®TFT ARETT
SRMEE
RHIEEE ETRAESH
4,405 — — 4,405

There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 in

both years.

No analysis is disclosed since the Group has no
financial assets and liabilities measured under level 2
and 3 during the years ended 31 December 2013 and

2012.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities carried at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate to their fair values.

RAEFEEAR - BB —RER =2 FEH

HEZT—=FkR=_F—Z=ZF+=ZA
“t+—HLEFER ARAEETES
MEERBEREBEAN -_R=:2 &
WEHEBEBEIW -

RRAREEFRR  FAVBRRANIEZE

HRAG BN BEERRERMBE
REREEARS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

RE B R R (A

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

6.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from 2012.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt (which
includes bank borrowings, bank overdrafts and promissory
note) and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued capital and reserves. The directors of
the Company review the capital structure on a continuous
basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost
of capital and the risks associated with capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the issuance of new shares
as well as the addition of new borrowings.

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio at 31 December 2013 and 2012 was as
follows:

EXEEER

AEEEBAAL  UREAEENSEBE
%2F

& AREFREELE - 8T —Ff

4 W PR RIS T o

AEBEZEARBREBEBRERITER
RITE X AN RE) ARRATEE ARG
HE(BROBTEANFEE) - XRAREET
Eiigsl EARE - ERRF —80  EEEE
BARARERRERR - AEEHRIFESE
ZRRBBBEITHR NG ER  FEHEE
BT o

EXRRREER
W-E-—=ER-F-—F+-A=+—AW
ERABELEMT :

2013 2012

—E-=5F —EF—=F

RMB’000 RMB"000

ARBT T AREFT

Debt &% 47,470 29,500
Total equity ey k] 239,723 187,994
Gearing ratio EREBELE 19.8% 15.7%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REVBRRMEE(F

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION 7.

Information reported to the directors of the Company, being
the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on the types of goods or services delivered or
provided.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments are as
follows:

(i) the manufacture and sale of nonwoven fabric products
used in automotive interior decoration parts and other
parts; and

(i)  the supply and procurement operation segment
including trading of rubber, garment accessories and
food products.

7 ERE
MAEEEE(AIEELEREKE) 2RUAIE
BREFEDOMRENER - EEMTEE R
FIRERBEERR -

REBNEERF 2RI EWT

(i) BERHERRTEAMSTREMEES
WESMER : Kk

(i HERRBLENH (BEEERE -
REMHFRRM) °

\
e

Segment revenue and results DEBMAREE
Supply and Manufacture and
procurement sale of nonwoven
operation fabric products Total
HERKBLZ RERHEEGHER ait
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
“%¥-z§ -%--% C-B-=f -T--f CB-Zf CE-CZf
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AEBTT ARBTR AREFTT ARBTR ARBTR
Segment revenue: AHBBA
Sales to external customers HEETINIER 354,650 6,673 188,727 160,233 543,377 166,906
Segment results NEEE 3,579 5 26,828 14,036 30,407 14,041
Unallocated corporate income R ARAFUA 23,351 2,875
Unallocated corporate expenses R DEARFX (3,495) (2,890)
Profit from operations ES 4yl 50,263 14,026
Finance costs BEKAK (2,637) (1,731)
Profit before tax BRBATE R 47,626 12,295

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue
generated from external customers. There were no inter-
segment sales for the years ended 31 December 2013 and
2012.

LA E23RM D EBRATIZR BINBE A ©
BE-_Z—=GN_ZT——F+-_A=+—H
IFFEWESEBRUWA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

o)

PA RS SRR M AL (A

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Segment revenue and results (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group's accounting policies described in Note
3. Segment results represent the profit from each segment
without allocation of interest income, realised gain on held-
for-trading investments, unrealised gain on held-for-trading
investments and central operating expenses including staff
costs, finance costs and income tax expense. This is the
measure reported to the chief operating decision marker
for the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance.

7.

Segment assets and liabilities
Supply and
procurement
operation
HERFRLZ
2013 2012
—E-=f —T--F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETT
ASSETS EE
Segment assets DEEE 116,147 8,157
Unallocated corporate assets RARAFEE
Total assets BELE
LIABILITIES af
Segment liabilities k=N 28,893 —
Unallocated corporate liabilities  AAEAFEE
Total liabilities BEEHE

For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

— all assets are allocated to reportable segment other
than corporate financial assets including held-for-
trading investments and corporate cash and bank
balance. Goodwill is allocated to segments as described
in Note 22.

— all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other
than corporate financial liabilities including promissory
note and accruals and other payables.

7 RBE R ()

DEHBARFEE)
REDHHFBRENEIMANAEEE
STBURARR o o BRI B ) BC A B
A FEEERENDEHRE HIFEEKR
ENAERWaMPRTRER(BREIX
A BERAEABRASNERLTEDE
ELER o LA EREERREZRADEE
RN FHE D BRI B -

THEERER

Manufacture and
sale of nonwoven

fabric products Total
HERHEEGHER &t
2013 2012 2013 2012
“B-=f% “E-—F —E-=f —T--F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETT  ARBTR  ARETR
182,778 170,414 298,925 178,571
28,728 62,285
327,653 240,856
42,880 52,308 11,773 52,308
16,157 554
87,930 52,862

REENBRBALNRDEHESERER

BRAoreREE(BREBEEERERD
BIRE RIRITHER)IN  FIAEEBNE
ZA 2| AL o MAAMIFE 22 Fri - P
TInEEDE

— KBorzRBE(BRANZERANER

ER N EMENRE) SN -

Fe=RI 23 A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REVBRRMEE(F

For the year ended 31 December 2013

BE—FT—=Ff-H=1+—HIFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. THERE)
Other segment information HippHER
The following is the analysis of the Group’s other segment T AAEENEM S HER DT -
information:
Supply and Manufacture and
procurement sale of nonwoven
operation fabric products Total
HERRBLE HERHERHHER CHI
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=f “E--F —B-=f% —ET--F —E-=f% “F-—-
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AEBTT ARBTR AEBTT ARBTR ARBFT
Capital expenditure BASH 4,572 — 5,983 2,606 10,555 2,606
Depreciation of property, nE  BEREENE
plant and equipment 1 — 4,827 4,479 4,828 4,479
Amortisation of prepaid land Bt uwAENERE
lease payments - - 73 73 73 73
Inventories written off WEEE - — 26 410 26 410
Impairment loss recognised in ~ DEAEKE ZHEHE
respect of trade receivables ER - - 198 117 198 17
Revenue from major products and services REFEERRBREHKRA

Information about the Group’s major products is set out in
Note 8.

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in the PRC and Hong
Kong.

The Group’'s revenue from external customers and
information about its non-current assets by geographical
location are detailed below.

BFRASEIEERNENBNMES

i EE R
AREBREZE MM APBERES -

TR A S BRI F R A R BRI

HEEDNIRBEEOER -

Revenue from
external customers

Non-current assets*

REMREF KA FRBEE*
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E2-=F —ZFT—= —E—-=ZF —FT——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR%¥TrT AR%®TR AR%TET
The PRC A 494,042 160,233 49,016 43,029
Hong Kong BB 43,690 6,673 4,566 34
Overseas (Note) BN ) 5,645 — — —
543,377 166,906 53,582 43,063

Note: The Group’s overseas customers including but not limited to

Biat : REEZBINEF BEETRINHNEK - &R

customers in Singapore, Bangladesh and Taiwan.

Non-current assets exclude deferred tax assets and goodwill.

HANBERAENEP

* FRPEETBEEEHAEERBE -

“E-=HERH



94

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

)

PA RS SRR M AL (A

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2013, revenue generated
from one (2012: three) customer of the Group amounting
to approximately RMB57,549,000 (2012: RMB79,046,000)
has individually accounted for over 10% of the Group's total
revenue. No other single customer contributed 10% or more
to the Group’s revenue for both years ended 31 December
2013 and 2012.

Revenue from major customers, each of them amounted to
10% or more of the Group's revenue, are set out below:

Customer A ZEA

Customer B (Note) BEB(H7)
Customer C (Note) BEC(K7)
Customer D (Note) BED(H:#)

Note:

No information on revenue for the current year is disclosed for these
customers since none of them contributed 10% or more to the Group's
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2013.

REVENUE

The Group’s revenue represents sales of nonwoven fabric
products used in automotive interior decoration parts and
other parts, rubber, garment accessories and food products.

DEERE)

EHFTEEFNEHR
BE-_Z—=F+-A=+—RH1LEFEE 7
AEB —ZBEF(ZE——F: ZR)ELEN
W AKARKEST 549,000 T(ZFBE——4F : A
R #79,046,000 70) B E(E AL BB AR B
10% - HE-_ZT—=FK_FT——F+_A8
=t+—HIEMEFE  BEEGE-FPER
EEFRA 10% KA E o

TEEPHBA(BIEARREUAR 10% A
E)EHIT

2013 2012
—E—-=F —ET—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®TR ARBF T
57,549 —

— 37,255

— 23,031

— 18,760

Wit -
BRBE-B-ZF+-A=+—ALEEEEES K

A AU 10% AL S I B AR LS
B AR -

A
REE R AR TR A RE AR D 8 &
fmEmR BB RXEFMRBNHEE -

An analysis of revenue is as follows: WA DT -
2013 2012
—E—= —E—F
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR® TR ARETTT

Nonwoven fabric for use in automobiles AR ARERESN

— Sales of automotive floor carpets — BB E 108,117 90,234
— Sales of other automotive parts — HfRBERHFREE 80,610 69,999
Sales of rubber BRBEHNEES 332,668 6,673
Sales of garment accessories KB Y H B 20,923 —
Sales of food products BEmiHEE 1,059 —
543,377 166,906
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

o)

PA RS SRR M AL (A

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

9.

10.

OTHER INCOME

Interest income

Technical support income

Consultancy fee income

Realised gain on held-for-trading investments
Unrealised gain on held-for-trading investments
Others

PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS

The Group’s profit from operations is stated after charging

the following:

Auditors’ remuneration

Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Operating lease rentals in respect of rented
premises

Staff costs including directors’ remuneration
(Note 14):

— Salaries and other benefits

— Retirement benefits scheme contributions

Cost of inventories recognised as cost of sales

Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Inventories written off

Impairment loss recognised on trade receivables

Research and development expenditure (Note)

Note:

The amount included in cost of sales for the year ended 31 December
2013 amounted to approximately RMB7,356,000 (2012: RMB6,470,000).

9. HfhlgA
2013 2012
—E-=F —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETIT
FEWA 32 28
B U A 1,117 1,426
AIABEUWA 662 —
RIEEEREMNDER N 3,209 1,122
RBIEEEREMRER M 20,110 1,725
Hh 232 475
25,362 4,776
10. B&HRF
AEBOCERFB NGB THZIE
2013 2012
—E-=F —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETIT
ZE RN & 798 473
T8 - T b 78 & R IE 8 73 73
ME  BMERZEITE 4,828 4,479
BHAHEMENKEHEER
473 137
BIRA(BIEESHM)
(Htst14)
— Fe REAMET 11,432 9,388
— RIREFIFH B 2,863 2,815
BRAHEERANFERR 467,863 116,347
LEME - BEREBEBE
1 34
FEMHE 26 410
FIEUWE 5 RIB R AR EE 18 198 117
e R B B () 7,356 6,470

Wit :

6,470,0007T) °

HE-_T—=F+-_A=+—"HBLEFERNARAHEK
R EEOAARE 7,356,000 L(—F——4F : AR

“E-=HER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REVBRRMEE(F

For the year ended 31 December 2013
E T E—CFF =1 —HIFFE

11. FINANCE COSTS

Interest expenses on bank borrowings wholly

repayable within five years
Interest expenses on bank overdrafts
Interest expenses on promissory note
Finance lease charges

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current tax
Hong Kong
PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT")

Overprovision for in previous years
PRC EIT

Deferred tax
Current year

11. BERK
2013 2012
—E-=F —EF—-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARETTT
BARAERNBEBEENRITER
EOPAINSE-=5 1,799 1,724
RITEXHNFEEA 82 —
AN EENTEEA 756 —
BEREER — 7
2,637 1,731
12. FISBiBAX
2013 2012
—E-=F —EF——F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARETIT
BN ERBE 18
BB 1,383 398
PR E TSR
(THhELERSH]) 3,707 1,564
5,090 1,962
BEIFEBERE
FREMGEAEH (297) (283)
IEFET H
KEE (211) (182)
4,582 1,497

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), the Group is not subject to
any income tax in the Cayman Islands and BVI.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for the years ended 31 December
2013 and 2012.

RIEASHEREBEMARES ([EBERR
HEDBRIIER  AEERFHERERRE
RS BABMEAMEHR -

HE-Z-—=Fr-_F——F+-_A=+—8H
IEFE - BAEFNEHIZMEERTUEF 16.5%

e
FTE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

W

B B R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2013

B —F—=F+-A=1—HIFE
12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

PRC EIT is calculated at the applicable rates based on
estimated taxable income earned by the PRC subsidiary of
the Group with certain tax preference, based on existing
legislation, interpretation and practice in respect thereof.

Pursuant to the enterprise income tax rules and regulations
of the PRC, the applicable PRC EIT rate of the Group’s PRC
subsidiary is 25%.

Pursuant to PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, an innovative
and high-end technology enterprise may enjoy a preferential
enterprise income tax rate of 15% (“IHT Enterprise
Rate”). On 22 December 2009, Joystar Wuxi obtained
the “Certificate of Innovative and High-end Technology
Enterprise” with validity period of three years. The IHT
Enterprise Rate enjoyed by Joystar Wuxi was expired in
December 2012. During the year ended 31 December
2013, Joystar Wuxi has further obtained the Certificate of
Innovative and High-end Technology Enterprise and the IHT
Enterprise Rate enjoyed by Joystar Wuxi will be expired in
November 2015. Consequently, the applicable income tax
rate of Joystar Wuxi for the year ended 31 December 2013 is
15% (2012: 15%).

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the
profit before tax multiplied by the PRC enterprise income tax
rate is as follows:

12.

FREBimx (&)

RECEMESRRBRITEN - 2B R EMEH
B - WEFETHIABENANSE B EH
B AR PTERE G R R B - AE ARG

s
= o
B

IRz Bl b Z PR IS BUAR
=N

KB - RNEBKH
AR ERTREEEMSHER25% °

RIBHBEGEMSIVE  SHRMEENTESR
m%ﬁﬁ %FME R E15% ([BHRMEFER

D R=FEAFT-A-+=A #E
R BB AR RORRE AR
= BRUES)TH MBI HITE R E
ER=F-=Ft-ARE BE=F=F
+oAS+—ALEE  KE(REEE—S
TABHRMLRES - FIAE (R HEA

mmﬁ&miim R —_E—-RHE+—AF
e AL BE(EH)REE T —=F1+=
A=t+—BLEFEZERMEHRER15% (=
T——F 115%) -

P54 B3 B0 B A LT DA R B 19 B
B E AT ME IR T

2013 2012

—E-=F —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR%T T ARBTF T

Profit before tax R B3 AT Y ) 47,626 12,295
Tax at the PRC enterprise income tax rate of RHREREMERNE25%

25% (2012: 25%) FTE(ZZF——F : 25%) 11,907 3,074
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible 7~ A] FIJR B 52 B B 76 B/ 22 251 182
Tax effect of income that are not taxable BERRBWA NS LR (3,634) (885)
Over provision in previous years BEFEHBBEEEG (297) (283)
Tax effect of tax preferential period MIBEEMNT BT E (2,294) (856)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries B AR TR R ZE (2,074) (53)
Tax loss not recognised RIERTIER B 723 318
Income tax expense FrSHR X 4,582 1,497

“E-=HER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

o)

PA RS SRR M AL (A

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

12.

13.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Under the New Tax Law, from 1 January 2008, non-resident
enterprises without an establishment or place of business in
the PRC or which have an establishment or place of business
in the PRC but whose relevant income is not effectively
connected with the establishment or a place of business in
the PRC, will be subject to withholding tax at the rate of 10%
(unless reduced by treaty) on various types of passive income
such as dividends derived from sources within the PRC.

According to the notice Caishui 2008 No. 1 released by the
Ministry of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation,
distributions of the pre-2008 retained profits of a foreign-
invested enterprise to a foreign investor in 2008 or after
are exempt from corporate income tax. Accordingly, the
retained profits as at 31 December 2007 in the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries will not be subject to 10% withholding tax on
future distributions.

According to the EIT law, starting from 1 January 2008,
10% withholding income tax will be imposed on dividend
relating to profits earned by the companies established
in the PRC in the calendar year 2008 onwards to their
foreign shareholders. For investors incorporated in Hong
Kong which hold at least 25% of equity interest of those
PRC companies, a preferential rate of 5% will be applied.
The Group has applied the preferential rate of 5% as the
Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are directly held by an
investment holding company incorporated in Hong Kong.
At 31 December 2013, no deferred tax has been provided
for in respect of the temporary differences attributable to
such profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
approximately RMB82,287,000 (2012: RMB62,031,000) as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the profit for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
RMB43,044,000 (2012: RMB10,798,000) and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 1,123,200,000 (2012:
532,131,148) in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share

For the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, diluted
earnings per share are the same as the basic earnings per
share as the Company did not have any dilutive potential
ordinary shares during the years ended 31 December 2013
and 2012.

12.

13.

FrEBm% (&)

RBFHE A_TENF-A B X3F
EPBERIKETERALEHE - HETE
PRI AE R BIRR B A4S LB - AWM A ER
EXWIEEPBER T HAETERE L LR
ZHEREE  BARSERBBARR
B Z R BT 10% (FR FEFZIRADR 2 ) B
TR

AR5 B B B0 K B R AR A 2 8 2 BA F1 2008 %6
15BA - INEIRECER ST N\Fh2iE
RSN EZE DR T NFr 2 REHF -
H R ER B M EMEE o ALt - R RE
HORE  AEEZFBRWNBEARR-ZEZ
tFEF+_ A=+ —BZ2REEF 5 H BN
10% 2 TEHERL ©

BIEBECEMERE BT N\F—H—H
B OBEBETRRKINARE —EENEE
B BRER 89 55 A S B SR AMNIR B A IR B R
10% MIBIIFTSH - HRERBFMALE
HEZSEPHRAREL25% RENRES
BEBS% NEBEMRE - AR AEEFH KB
NEYE—BEFEEMAINREZERA
REEHE BMAEEES%NEEREH
W e R _E—=F+_A=+—H" &
NGRS RE TN 35 = Ve = p A F
AR¥82,287,000L(ZE—=F: AR
62,031,000 JT ) K Bg B 2= 5B 1M 1 H 3 XE R 18 %
B AAEAEBRUEELRIFZHEERDZE
o mERR E R AT A g REE -

BREF

BREAXEF

AR HEBEABHERERNBIHEE
DREAQRABEABRGEEERANOA
R ¥43,044,0000(—F — —F: AR¥
10,798,00070 ) X F A E B 17K E A% 2 0
W98 A1,123,200,000 % (= F — —4F :
532,131,148 ) HEEH -

BRESRR
HRARARBE_T—=FR_FT—_4F
T A=+t —REFENEFAEEET LR
Bz —=Frk=_FT——-F+=A
=t+—HIFE SREEBANEGRERR
FIFER ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REVBRRMEE(F

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

14. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND
EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION

Details of remuneration of the directors of the Company for
the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules and Section
161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, are as follows:

Fees
ik
2013 2012

14. £ BESTTBRABRESHM

RIE EMARBIREBERAEDIE 161 FIRER
FERRAESHHOFBLT

Salaries and Retirement benefit
allowances scheme contributions Total
FoRpE BINERIE BT &t

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

—§-=f -T--f -g-=f
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000
ARBTR ARETL ARBTR

%% Z%-Zf -%T--f C-B-Zf —T--f
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETT ARBTR ARETR

Name of director S
Executive director Hi7EE
Zhuang Yuejin (Note (3)  HERE(H/i(a)) 359 367 145 144 45 46 549 557
Pak Ping ("Mr. Pak”) BE(R%EE]D 144 147 - - 7 7 151 154
Wong Ho Yin (Note (b)) BERMZD) 288 293 - — 12 " 300 304
Ni Bin (appointed on 31 May @E(R-F—=%
2013 and resigned on RAA=T-HEZA
21 November 2013) RRZE-=F+-—
AZT—HE) - - 40 — - - 40 -
Ruan Bixia (retired on REE(R=F-=%
20 May 2013) TAZTHEE) 37 98 - — - — 37 98
Independent non-executive BV HETEE
director
Feng Xueben BER 48 49 — - - — 48 49
Mak Wai Ho RER 9% 98 - - - - 9 98
Sung Kwan Wun (appointed REZ (R -T—=F
on 19 August 2013) NATHREZR) 18 - - - - - 18 -
Tang Yanfei (retired on ARERZT-=%
20 May 2013) TAZTHRI) 19 49 - - - — 19 49
1,009 1,101 185 144 64 64 1,258 1,309
Note: Vo2

(a) Mr. Zhuang Yuejin is also the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company.

(b) Mr. Wong Ho Yin is also the Chief Financial Officer of the
Company.

During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as a
discretionary bonus or an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. There was
no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments during the years ended 31 December
2013 and 2012.

The emoluments of senior management (excluding directors)
fell within the following band:

(@) HEBERENR/RRANIFERITHAE -
(b) EEREENRA/RRANPIEEE

HE T - ZT——F+-_HA=+—H
HEFER AEEBERTANZESIHEE
EBREMARNEB S MARNEBE BB
AR - SEABEREE - BHE-T—=F
F_T——F+-_A=Z+—HBHIFERN  HE
BEEMEXRABRETMAMESHOLZEHE

EREER(TEREEZ)NHENFUTHE
A

Number of individuals

Nil to RMB798,000 (equivalent to approximately &% A R# 798,000 7T (%R

HK$1,000,000) #71,000,000 % 7T)

ALTEE
2013 2012
—E—-=fF —E—F
5 4

“E-=HER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MR R M (A

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE_FT—=—F+_FA=+—HIFE

15. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 15. T EEEMESES

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year AEBERAFEENRANESHINA TBEMRS
included 2 (2012: 3) directors, details of whose remuneration (ZE2E——F: ZR)EF  HeHBESIR L
set out in Note 14 above. The emoluments of the remaining XHiFF14 - BT =BmAaFMAL(ZE—=

3 (2012: 2) individuals are set out below: F o WZ)NFEIOT
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——F
RMB’'000 RMB’'000

ARBTR AR¥ETT

Basic salaries and allowances EARS 4 ML 426 248
Retirement benefits scheme contributions IRRAEF T8I 58 89 57

515 305
The emoluments fell within the following band: MEeNFUATEHER :

Number of individuals

ATEE

2013 2012
—Eg—= —E——F

Nil to RMB798,000 (equivalent to approximately Tz A R# 798,000 7T
HK$1,000,000) (#E%1491,000,000 % 7T) 3 2
During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, no BHE T = _FT——F+-_A=+—H
remuneration was paid by the Group to the non-directors, EEERN AEEBMERIERNTES  HoH
highest paid employees as an inducement to join or upon e B X NS - 1EAMREIMAKREE S INA
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. AEBENEE  SEAERBE HE2_Z
None of the non-director and highest paid employees waived —=FN_ZE——F+-_A=t+—HIFE
or agreed to waive any emoluments during the years ended A EFNTES e NeREENESXR

31 December 2013 and 2012. EREEABME -

16. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO 16. XA FREEAEBEFERR
THE OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The profit for the year attributable to the owners of the RATHEA AEBLFERMNBIEE R AR R
Company included a loss of approximately RMB2,744,000 BHREREENEERHARY?2,744,00070(=
(2012: RMB2,286,000) which has been dealt with in the T——4%F: AR%¥2,286,0007T) °

financial statements of the Company.

17. DIVIDEND 17. BB
The directors do not recommend the payments of any EFETRIUBE_FT—=FT-_A=1+—H
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2013 LHEERNEARE(ZF—=F &) -
(2012: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

RE B R R (A

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

18. Y% - BMERKE

The Group REH
Furniture
Plant and Motor and Leasehold  Construction
Buildings machinery vehicles fixtures improvement in progress Total
BT  HELREH RE  BAREE HENEEE EEIR CHI
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR ARETT ARETR
Cost A
At 1 January 2012 R-E--%-F-H 10,016 40,860 2,383 931 2.4 - 56,431
Additions NE 51 81 - 132 - 2,342 2,606
Transfer from construction rEIEEA
in progress — 1479 — — — (1,479) —
Disposals e - (555) - - - - (555)
At 31 December 2012 and RZE-—%+-F=+-H
1 January 2013 RZE-=F-f-H 10,067 41,865 2,383 1,003 2,241 863 58,482
Additions RE 4,572 1,583 59 69 201 4,07 10,555
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERB AR - - - - - 4
Transfer from construction EREERTR
in progress — 3,720 - — - (3,720 —
Disposals fe - - (107) (20) — - 127)
Exchange alignment B A% (30) - - (1) - - (31)
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=F+-F=1-H 14,609 47,168 2,335 1,115 2,442 1,214 68,883
Accumulated depreciation ZHERRE
and impairment
At 1 January 2012 R-E-—F-f-H 2,188 9,308 823 629 1,230 - 14178
Charge for the year EEYH 337 3,484 289 9 277 - 4,479
Disposals e - (321) - - - - (321)
At 31 December 2012 and RZB-—%+-F=1-H
1 January 2013 k=%5-=%F-A-H 2,525 12,471 1112 721 1,507 - 18,336
Charge for the year ERi 336 3,816 295 102 279 — 4,828
Disposals e - - (106) (18) - - (124)
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=%+-f=1-H 2,861 16,287 1,301 805 1,786 - 23,040
Net book value BERE
At 31 December 2013 W-E-zE+-A=t-R 11,748 30,881 1,034 310 656 1214 45,843
At 31 December 2012 RZE-Z5+-fA=1-8 7,542 29,39 1,211 342 734 863 40,146

At 31 December 2013, the carrying amount of buildings
of the Group pledged as security for the Group’s bank
borrowings amounted to approximately RMB11,748,000

(2012: RMB7,542,000).

RZE—=F+-_A=+—0 AEEZLEME
HELHAEANRYE 11,748,000 T(ZZE— =4 :
ANRME7,542,00070) MEFIERSERITER

MR o

“E-=HER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

RE B R R (A

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

19. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

Current assets MBEE
Non-current assets IRBEE

Analysed for reporting purposes as:

At the beginning of the year REH
Amortisation for the year FEEE
At the end of the year RFE

The Group’s prepaid land lease payments represent payment
for land use rights outside Hong Kong under medium term
leases.

At 31 December 2013, the carrying amount of prepaid land
lease payments pledged as security for the Group's bank
borrowings amounted to approximately RMB2,917,000
(2012: RMB2,990,000).

19. BN LHEERE

The Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E-=F —EFE—-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR AR¥ETT

73 73
2,844 2,917
2,917 2,990
BWEMES 29
2013 2012
—E—-=5F —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®TR ARETIT

2,990 3,063
(73) (73)
2,917 2,990

AEBENTEN LB EKIAEE BB BHED
FEBBIAIMb R H) T (E SRR -

MN-TB—=F+-"A=1+—0 AEELDHE
HEHAARE2,917,000 (- F— 4 :
AR 2,990,0007T) B T8 L b FH & FRIEE
BERITEROERGR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

RE B R R (A

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

20. AKBATNKRE

The Company

AATE

2013 2012

—E-=F —EFE—-—F

RMB’'000 RMB’'000

AR® TR ARBEF T

Unlisted shares, at costs JEETIRD IR 50,022 17,872

Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note (a)) FEULHT B8 A R FRIE (M7 (a) 78,846 37,729

Less: Impairment loss recognised (Note (b)) Ji - BRERIBEEIE (A b)) (566) —

78,280 37,729

Amounts due to subsidiaries (Note (a)) FET M B A R IE (ffat (a)) 15,200 —
Note: Hiat -

(a)  The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free (a) BB ARED AEEKE 28 AT

and recoverable/repayable on demand. Bl EEREE -
(b)  After considering the financial positions of the relevant subsidiaries, (b) KEEEMBENBRARNMBEMKRE KARE

the directors of the Company are in the opinion that an impairment
loss of approximately RMB566,000 (2012: Nil) has been recognised

for the year ended 31 December 2013.

FRPRAERBRHARES566,000T(ZF— =
£ meERBE-—_E—=+-—A=+—Q81F
FREAER

“E-=HER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MR R M (A

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE_FT—=—F+_FA=+—HIFE
20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 20.

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company as at 31
December 2013 were as follows:

RETBRBAWIRE (@)
R-B—=F+-A=+—8 BBRAQAM
BRARMFERIMT :

Nominal value
of issued and

fully paid
ordinary shares/
Place of issued and
incorporation/ paid up/ Percentage of
registration registered equity attributable Principal
Name of Company and operation capital to the Company activities
\ ERIRMEEE
ERMIL, B>EE,/ 287 AQT ‘
DRER BEREEWE KR EMBRAR EiEEZASL TEEE
Direct Indirect
HiE %
Joystar (BVI) Automotive British Virgin UsSD1 100% — Investment holding
Interior Decoration Limited Islandsi“BVI”) )
EREARES 157 RAER
([RBERRES])
Joystar (BVI) Auto BVI usD1 100% — Investment holding
Inter-parts Limited RBAERRHS IES HE R
Joystar International Hong Kong HK$1,170,177 — 100% Trading of nonwoven
Investment Limited fabric products used
HEBRBREEERAF B 1,170,177 7T in automotive
interior decoration
parts and other parts
BEARASE AR
oA #f 5 ) B4 E
Joystar China Investment Hong Kong HK$1 — 100% Trading of rubber
Limited
REFEKREERAA N 18T BEEREB
Joystar Wuxi PRC Usb7,477,172 — 100% Manufacturing
R E (&) i 7,477,172 7T of nonwoven fabric
products used in
automotive interior
decoration parts and
other parts
SUERN TENSBIER
H i E 0 B\ Em
Link Excellent Limited BVI N UsD50,000 100% — Investment holding
REHBARHES 50,000 % 7T REER
Link Sharp International Hong Kong HK$10,000 — 100% Trading of food
Limited %> 10,0008 7T products
EERm
Sinogate Energy Limited BVI N usD1 — 100% Investment holding
hEEEERBR AT RBERRHES (E REERK
Splendid Sun Limited Hong Kong HK$1 — 100% Trading of rubber
BMER AT B 17T EERR
BRES(LE)BRAR PRC USD600,000 — 100% Trading of rubber
L2l 600,000 7T BEEKRE
Oriental Strategic Limited BVI N Usb50,000 100% — Investment holding
ERAERRHE 50,000 % 7T REZR
Brilliant Summit Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 — 100% Trading of garment
) BR AT 5 10,000/ 7T accessories
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
n'l_\ 7." i‘i ﬁ%mj‘?(ﬂﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

21. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 21. ABE QTN ER
The Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR AR¥ETT

Cost of investment in an associate R QR E KA
Unlisted E LT 6,266 —
Share of post-acquisition loss and JEAEU BB 18 BB &
other comprehensive loss HEM2HEE (1,371) —
4,895 —
At 31 December 2013, the Group had interest in the RZE—=F+"A=+—8  AEBER T
following associate: B NREAE R
Place of Proportion of ownership
incorporation/ Issued and interest and voting
registration paid up power held by the Principal
Name of Company and operation capital Group activity
HMEL BEER ERTR rEERFEN
NCIEE HEME BERE FERRRERELA TEEK

2013 2012
—E-ZfF —T——F

BN =B EERAA PRC UsD2,500,000 40% — Manufacturing of
HE 2,500,000 T polyester fibers
PR BRI

The associate is accounted for using the equity method in B N R T AR RIENZF e B WmKS
these consolidated financial statements. Bk

Interest in an associate is classified into the Group's REERRINER DD BEAREENESME
reportable segment of manufacture and sale of nonwoven mAEERIHER 2RO

fabric products.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

W

For the year ended 31 December 2013

B B R M (F)

B —F—=F+-A=1—HIFE
21. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 21.

Summarised financial information in respect of the associate

is set out below.

Current assets

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Revenue

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive loss for the year

Total comprehensive loss for the year

MEEE

FREEE

mEBAE

FRBEIE

YA

FEBE

FEHEMBEERER

FEXHEEERE

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information
to the carrying amount of the interest in the associate
recognised in the consolidated financial statements is as

follows:

Net assets of the associate

Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest

in the associate

Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in

the associate

i N BB BEFRE
REBREE QAN
Fr A RELL )

AEBERE LR FH
REEIREE

AT #5IE2 AR TS E R

2013 2012
—E-=F —EF—-—F
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARETR AREETTT
5,821 —
19,102 —
(12,801) —
2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETTT
3,428 —
3,428 —

B AN R RS M B RRAEAR

ERRMEREAENEENT

2013 2012
2= —FF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARBTT
12,122 —
40% —
4,895 —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REVBRRMEE(F

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

22. GOODWILL

The Group

Cost:

At 1 January 2012, 31 December 2012
and 1 January 2013

Acquisition of subsidiaries

At 31 December 2013

Accumulated impairment losses:
At 1 January 2012, 31 December 2012,

1 January 2013 and 31 December 2013

Carrying amount:
At 31 December 2013

At 31 December 2012

22,

AEE

B

ik

RMB’000
AREETIT

RZE——F—A—H ZE——F+-A=+—H

rE—Z—=%—F—H
U B B B 2 )

RZE—=F+=ZA=+—H

RIFWEBR -

51,099

51,099

R-_E——F—F—H ZE——F+-_A=+—H -
—2-=f(—-A-BR-ZF—=%+-A=+—-8B _ —

BREE :

R=F-=%+=-A=t—H

RZE—=—F+=—A=+—H

Allocation of goodwill to cash-generating

units

Goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing purposes
to the cash-generating units of trading of rubber business
by Sinogate Energy Limited and its subsidiaries (“Sinogate
Energy Group”) and trading of garment accessories business

by Brilliant Summit Limited (“Brilliant Summit”),

which are

together classified into the Group’s reportable segment of

supply and procurement operation.

51,099
TEBEERSELEMN
AETRENS  BECESEETHRERS
RATREMBRAR([FEERERDNEER
BBEB R ERAB (M) ) EFEKK

R EHORLELEL - MEXASEEA
B R ET 255 H -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REVBRRMEE(F

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

22. GOODWILL (continued)

Allocation of goodwill to cash-generating
units (Continued)

Before recognition of impairment losses, the carrying amount
of goodwill was allocated to the cash-generating units as

2. BE @)

TEBEERSELENME)

ERBEERN  BENREERIKEERS
ELEEM - HRWT

follows:
The Group
AEH
2013 2012
—2-= e
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARETT
Sinogate Energy Group (Note 38(a)) REBEIRE B (f72E 38(a) 21,847 —
Brilliant Summit (Note 38(b)) B (ffaE 38(b)) 29,252 —
51,099 —

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating units are
determined based on value in use calculations which use
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by the directors of the Company covering a five-year period,
and a discount rate of 23.74% and 14.04% per annum for
Sinogate Energy Group and Brilliant Summit respectively. The
discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks to
the segment.

Cash flow projections during the budget period are based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a five-
year period. The cash flows beyond that five-year period have
been extrapolated using a growth rate of 3.00% per annum
for both Sinogate Energy Group and Brilliant Summit. The
growth rates do not exceed the long-term average growth
rate for the market. The directors of the Company believe
that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions
on which the recoverable amount is based would not cause
the carrying amount of the unit to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit.

ReEEBEMMAIRESEIREEBEBR
HMERT - DEREARARESEMERER
FHREMNMBEE AEEELNRESREEN
FTE - AR R B IR S B R || /9 BRIR R 5 B
BEF23.74% K 14.04% ° FT{F A AYELIA X
BRAANE  WERBREESHHETRE

RIEEHRRR S RERADRIEE R
EREDFHRNPBREMEL - ERFH
BIASN IR 2R E B 7 R A P B RE IR S B K
1811159 75 5 F 3.00% K IR E 18 & KA o &%
SHREXRIEBHTSORBFHEEE - K
NEEFRE - TRESREMRENEZRER
MERESEAREHE TSR EMAREE
BHREELFEMNATKESFREHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REVBRRMEE(F

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

23. INVENTORIES

Raw materials
Work in progress
Finished goods

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables
Allowance for doubtful debts

R
R
BUPK dh

fEYE 5 508
RIEREHE

The aging analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice
date, and net of allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows:

0 to 90 days

91 to 180 days
181 to 365 days
Over 365 days

0Z90H
91EF180H
181 %365 H
#838365 H

23. ¥8
The Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBF T
6,492 6,207
1,053 1,695
14,281 7,653
21,826 15,555
24. EWE ZHE
The Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E-=F %
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTF T
79,657 65,297
(3,695) (619)
75,962 64,678

RIEBEZREH - BYESFRNRE DT (K

HBRREREE) 0T
The Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E—= T
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREF T
62,116 53,581
9,743 7,327
2,643 3,770
1,460 —
75,962 64,678

“E-=HER
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group’s trading terms with customers are mainly on
credit. The credit terms generally ranging from 30 to 120
days (2012: ranging from 30 days to 120 days), depending
on the creditworthiness of customers and the existing
relationship with the Group. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. Trade
receivables are non-interest bearing.

At 31 December 2013, the carrying amounts of the Group’s
trade receivables were denominated in RMB, HKD and USD
of approximately RMB61,427,000, RMB11,155,000 and
RMB3,380,000 (2012: RMB58,386,000, RMB6,292,000 and
Nil) respectively.

At 31 December 2013, trade receivables of approximately
RMB19,893,000 (2012: RMB15,678,000) were past due
but not impaired. These relate to a number of independent
customers for whom there is no recent history of default.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

The aging analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

Overdue by: # A

1 to 90 days 1290H

91 to 180 days 912180 H
181 to 365 days 1812365 H
Over 365 days #8318 365 H

During the year ended 31 December 2013, an allowance
was made for estimated irrecoverable trade receivables
of approximately RMB198,000 (2012: RMB117,000). The
impaired trade receivables related to customers that were
in financial difficulties and management assessed that the
receivables were not recoverable. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MR R (A

24. BEWEZHEE)

AEEREZEFNESHBRAEZAEE - BER
FREFANMAXEENREHE 58—
BN F30F1208(ZE——F: N F30F
1208) - NEBEB N EZEELE RN 2 BUWR
B MBRNzEBRBEREERETHEN -
EWRESHBARE -

R-ZE—=F+-A=+—8 KEEHNE
WESHBEZEABLDAARE - BITRE
TLEHE - PRI AARE61,427,0007C © A
R # 11,155,000 7T & A R ¥ 3,380,000 T(=
T — —F: AR¥58,386,0007C AR
6,292,000 L 4 ) o

R-E—=F+-"A=+—8 EKREFHE
AR 19,893,000 (=T ——F : AR¥
15,678,000 70 ) B @ BB KB E - sZZRIAW
METEANBREENEBLITE - A£ERE
Wr il B L2 S A e A AR @ o

FERWE ZHIENRROTMT

2013 2012
—2-=% —F=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT
15,790 15,664
2,414 14

229 —

1,460 —
19,893 15,678

HE_ZT-—=H+_A=1+—HBIFE 2
fHET ATk Bl B IR E 5 5B 4 A R 198,000
T(ZZE—=—F: AR¥117,0007T) {F H #
- BERERKFTEEENTBRRENTEE
B BB ARSERRE AT AE o
NEBBRSWERZEEHRFEEAERR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

o)

PA RS SRR M AL (A

For the year ended 31 December 2013

HBE-F—ZF+-A=+—AIFE

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

25.

The aging analysis of the Group’s trade receivables which are
impaired is presented as follows:

Overdue by: BE
181 to 365 days 181%365H
Over 365 days #838 365 H

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts is as follows:

At 1 January n—H—H

Acquisition of a subsidiary W HE M B A A

Impairment loss recognised on trade HREERE S
receivables BEEE

At 31 December Rt+=ZA=+—

24. BEWEZFHEE)

AEBDRERKEZREBNRESTAOT

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 25. EfRIE - RERHMEWRKIE

RECEIVABLES

Trade deposits
Prepayments
Other receivables

BoEe
AN/
HoAth & WK

2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREFT
198 17
3,497 502
3,695 619
2013 2012
—E-= —E—-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AREF T
619 502
2,878 e
B2
198 117
H 3,695 619
The Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT T AREFT
20,558 9,916
3,096 8,814
2,373 2,454
26,027 21,184
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REVBRRMEE(F

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE_FT—=—F+_FA=+—HIFE

25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 25. A{J:E - REe R HMEWRFIE %)

RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Prepayments and deposits TERFIERIES

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The
financial assets included in the above balances related to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default.

The Company

AR
2013 2012
—E-= —E——F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARBTTT

62 675

P EEMERISRE - llARETINHE
B B AN A R RS SR EUGR TR B R -

26. HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS 26. HEEERE
Held-for-trading investments include: FHEEERERTE
The Group
rEH
2013 2012
—E—-= —E—-—F
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR®T ARETT
Listed securities: EWES
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong ERB LMK ARES 27,141 4,405
Fair values are determined with reference to quoted market REEDH2EMBTSEAEMETE ©
bid prices.
27. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSIT 27. EEBBITER

At 31 December 2013, the fixed interest rate on pledged
bank deposit of approximately RMB6,114,000 (2012: Nil)
with maturity of one month was 0.01% per annum. The
pledged bank deposit was denominated in USD.

At 31 December 2013, deposit with bank of approximately
RMB6,114,000 (2012: Nil) has been pledged to secure
the banking facility of a subsidiary of the Company. The
pledged bank deposit will be released upon expiry of the
relevant banking facilities of the subsidiary of the Company
by 15 June 2014 or cancelation at any time at the bank’s
discretion.

MW_E—=%+-"A=+—0  3HEAE—
EAMBEEMBITHERLARK6,114,0007T
ZE-ZFE)NETEFANER001% °
BRI TF RAETLAHE -

MN-TB—=F+-"A=+—8  FBIFEIHA
R#6,114,000t( —T——4F : &#)B#KFE
BARAE—MWBRARMNRTRENER - B
EIRITFZE R - —ME XA TR ARA
NAElZME AR M ERIR TR A B B RS R
B SIRIRIRTTEVIEA EBERE T LAGESS o

Annual Report 2013



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

RE B R R (A

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and

8. RERBEEEEY

gEGaReRERms RekBHE
BFRRE  ROTFRRAEERTEF

SEME

in banks, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash and cash B BHeRERMTHREHRNR S LR

equivalents at the end of the reporting period as shown in

the consolidated statement of cash flows can be reconciled R0 -
to the related items in the consolidated statement of

financial position as follows:

Cash and bank balances
Bank overdrafts (Note 35)

Cash and bank balances

TEHEYAEEA MBI RANAREER Y

e RIRTTH %
RITES (MIFE35)

W& RARTTAEBR

The Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR AR¥ETT

51,474 82,132
(2,959) —
48,515 82,132

The Company

KAT]
2013 2012
—EB-=F —E—-—F
RMB’'000 RMB’'000

AR®TR ARETT

1,521 53,124

“E-=HER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e M B mRME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE=F—=41=A=+—ALLEE

28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

At 31 December 2013, cash and bank balances are
denominated in the following currencies:

Renminbi AR
Hong Kong dollars BIT
United States dollars £
Renminbi AR
Hong Kong dollars BT

At 31 December 2013, the bank balances of the Group
denominated in Renminbi amounted to approximately
RMB15,977,000 (2012: RMB10,500,000) were kept in banks
in the PRC. Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is
subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations.

28. BERATEEYE)

RZZB—=F+-A=+—R0 B RRTHE

AR T EH#EHE
BRI T EEHE
The Group
rEH
2013 2012
—E—-=5F —EF—-—F
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARETR AREF T
16,009 10,527
16,210 64,931
19,255 6,674
51,474 82,132
The Company
¥
2013 2012
—EB-=F —E—-—F
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARET R AREETTT
2 2
1,519 53,122
1,521 53,124

RZZE—=F+-A=+—8 AEEUAR
BEHEL RN BEERRITZRITERY
RARHN5,977,000(ZFE——F ARK
10,500,0007C) © AR S SMNE 7R 38 <
FSNEER I R ABE - BERMARIEER

FE e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

RE B R R (A

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. R
Number
of shares Amount Amount
RO#E ¥ ¢E
Note HK$'000 RMB'000
il FET ARBTFT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each ~ BREEO0.1ET Y TRR
At 1 January 2012, R-ZZE-—_%—-A—-8:
31 December 2012, —E--F#+-R=1+-8-
1 January 2013 and 31 —T-=5—-HF-HRk
December 2013 —E-=F+-A=+-H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000 863,495
Issued and fully paid: BRTRAR
At 1 January 2012 W-E——%—A—H 240,000,000 24,000 20,552
Issue of shares by way of placing B &H A TG (a) 840,000,000 84,000 68,534
At 31 December 2012 and R-E——F+-A=+-HR
1 January 2013 = 1,080,000,000 108,000 89,086
Issue of consideration shares BIRERD (b) 72,000,000 7,200 5,743
At 31 December 2013 RZB-ZH+=-H=+—-H 1,152,000,000 115,200 94,829
Note: Hiat -
(a) On 14 May 2012, the Company raised 120,000,000 offer shares (a) RZE—ZFRA+TMA  AARBBAMEE
of HK$0.1 each by way of an open offer on the basis of one offer RREHABEREMRREROMEZT —REE
share for every two existing shares held on the record date. % 15 &9 E2E2 15 120,000,000 R ZF AR EE 0.1 78
T EERND o
On 12 September 2012, the Company raised 720,000,000 offer RZFE—ZFNA+=H  ARRABBRAEE
shares of HK$0.1 each by way of an open offer on the basis of RREHBHERE - RREROHEEZMREE
two offer shares for every one existing share held on the record P {7y 1) £ #3415 720,000,000 B & B EI(E 0.1 78
date. TR ERD
(b) On 27 May 2013, the Company issued 72,000,000 consideration (b) R-ZZE—=ZFRA=-1+tB ARRRKEESR
shares of HK$0.1 each for the acquisition of the business of B 2K B 4 5 753617 72,000,000 IR G AR EIE 0.1 75

trading of garment accessories.

TR RERD ©

“E-=HER
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the scheme (“Scheme”) on 13
September 2010 which will remain in force for a period of
10 years from the effective date of the Scheme and will
expire on 29 September 2020.

Under the Scheme, the directors may at their discretion grant
options to (i) any employee of any member of the Group
or any entity in which any member of the Group holds any
equity interest (the “Invested Entity”); (ii) any executive and
non-executive Directors of any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity; (iii) any supplier and customer of any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity; (iv) any person
or entity that provides research, development or other
technological support to any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; (v) any shareholder of any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity or any holder of any securities
issued or proposed to be issued by any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity; or (vi) any adviser or consultant of
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity to subscribe
for the shares of the Company.

The maximum number of shares in respect to which options
may be granted under the Scheme shall not exceed 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company on the date of
adopting the Scheme. The limit may be refreshed at any
time provided that the new limit must not be in aggregate
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at the date of the shareholders’ approval in general meeting.
However, the total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Scheme and any other scheme
of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time. The limit of the Scheme
was refreshed at a general meeting held on 20 May 2013.
At 31 December 2013, the total number of shares available
for issued under the Scheme was 108,000,000 (2012:
36,000,000) shares, which represented approximately 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company at that day of
refreshment. The maximum number of shares in respect
of which options may be granted to any individual in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue
on the last date of such 12-month period unless approval
of the shareholders of the Company has been obtained
in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules. A nominal
consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the grant
of an option.

Options may be exercised at any time from the date of grant
of the option to the 10th anniversary of the date of grant
as may be determined by the directors. The exercise price is
determined by the directors, and will not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price per share as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets on the date of the
grant of the options; (ii) the average closing price per share
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of the
grant of the options; or (iii) the nominal value of a share.
During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, no
share option was granted, exercised, expired or lapsed and
there is no outstanding share option under the Scheme.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MR R (A

30. BRERTE

ARAR-F—FENAT=BFMI BT
58D - SEtBIE A MEME T ERER -
ERASEA-R_EEAH - FNA -

RIBZAE EEARBRATALROBR
1 ARBARTZEMD : () ARBRBRA
SEEAXRERAERENEANEB(RER
DM EmEER ¢ (i) N BT AR 8 AR
REBRNOEARTRIFRTES : (i) A%
IR B EIRE BB EHER LT
Poi(ivyRASBEMKERERMKREBRE
HA RS EMEMIEOALTHER : (V&
SEEMKEREMREEEHRRKCERL
1 A B AIR B AT E BB HITHE
MBEHZFEBAAN RV REBEMK BT
A B TR AR

RIEZAT IR 2 BB T (E R - Al 37T
ZRMEE RZTBBARRNERZTEE
BZBETRA10% ° % R A BER 57 5 -
HEFRBENSRBERREARRASIES R -
RRABZBETRAZI0% ° R BIEZ
FFEI R AR R EMETEIE R EEERITE
2RI TR A TRITZRMEE
TEBBIREEETRN Z30% %38 L
BER-_ZE—=FRA-THETHRERS
tEEH - R_ZE—=F+_A=+—0 "R
Bzt &I Al BT R A1) 42 2% 108,000,000
fE(==& — =4 : 36,000,000 8% )iz 1n + HHE
RAARREHE B BEITRAL10% > B
A+ @A BER - REAENALTERZ
BB ETTER - Al PRI 2RO BETSE
Bz T A ABRREE —RARR 2B ETR
B2 1% BRIERBEIER ETARBERAR
AR ALERIER R - RBARE 1B TER
BN DB R S A o

AR AR B R EiEET EEREAE
HHAFMERRERITE  MERAESRR
o TEEBRIRESRETE U TSEAUT
ZE @A ()RR ER I B HRRR () R R P
FEMERAMBWTE: () ZEERER
HHBRRAEEEEROEBRMTFARER
Fraf 2 FHWmE (i) ROEE - REBE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MR R (A

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

31. RESERVES 31. f#f&
The Group REH
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements AEBEAEBEFECRBEBLEEZHN
therein for the current and prior year are presented in the aEmEBRANZ -

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The Company b /N |
Foreign
currency
Share  Contributed translation ~ Accumulated
premium surplus reserve losses Total
R EE HARR  OBBERE EH ait
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETR ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT

At 1 January 2012 WZE--F5—-f-H 22,694 17,219 (1,439) (12,366) 26,108
Loss for the year FEER — — — (2,286) (2,286)
Other comprehensive loss for the year FEEt2EER — — (235) — (235)
Total comprehensive loss FE2EFELE

for the year — — (235) (2,286) (2,521)
Share issue expenses R EITHS (3,827) - - — (3,827)
At 31 December 2012 and RZE-—F#+-A=t-BER

1 January 2013 —T-=5-A-H 18,867 17,219 (1,674) (14,652) 19,760
Loss for the year FEBR - - - (2,744) (2,744)
Other comprehensive loss for the year ¥ Et2EER — — (2,660) — (2,660)
Total comprehensive loss FEREBREE

for the year — — (2,660) (2,744) (5,404)
Issue of shares ) 5,168 — — - 5,168
Share issue expenses RAETHRL (8) — — — (8)
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=§+-A=+-H 24,027 17,219 (4,334) (17,396) 19,516
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

RE B R R (A

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE_FT—=—F+_FA=+—HIFE

31. RESERVES (Continued)

Note:

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds in the share
premium of the Company are distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position
to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Share premium represents premium arising from the issue of shares at
a price in excess of their par value per share and after deduction of
capitalisation issue and issuance costs of placing of shares.

Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus of the Company represented the difference between
the net assets value of the subsidiary acquired and the nominal value of
the share capital of the Company issued in exchange thereof pursuant to
the reorganisation during the year ended 31 December 2010.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group arose as a result of the Group
reorganisation implemented in preparation for the listing of the
Company’s shares in 2010 and represented the difference between the
nominal value of the aggregate share capital of the subsidiaries acquired
under the reorganisation scheme, over the nominal value of the share
capital of the Company issued in exchange therefore.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Statutory reserve

Subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC shall appropriate
10% of its annual statutory net profit (after offsetting any prior year's
losses) to the statutory reserve fund account in accordance with the PRC
Company Law. When the balance of such reserve fund reaches 50%
of the entity’s share capital, any further appropriation is optional. The
statutory reserve fund can be utilised to offset prior year’'s losses or to
increase capital after proper approval.

31. f#&E#)

IR 1E

REFAESHEARE  AARRMEERANESATH
DEFARABBR - EEZZRTBRE BEEK - AQ
AR AR BEE AT EERSNES -

Bt B iR Ba R0 SR EE ERETRO RN
BERNMCBETREEROBITRAREENRE -

BARER
ARRBZBABBIEPTIS 2 B A B A E FEERE
HE-ZT-ZF+-_A=+—HIEFESEHANE T
R 2 AR RIRAEEZ 28 ©

B pHER
AEBZAHRBEEN " —ZFERAQTRM L
mmATEITMEAR - FHIREEART BB RO E A B
AEFNEEERN AR BB EITUERROR AT
ERMZEE -

IR ERE
SNEIME R R ERE SN EBY MR MELNAA
SMNEZRE o ZREBDIREAMBRERWEIMABIINE
FHER GRS

EEME

BEHEARE  ARB R BN ZHEARE[E
FREAEAN IR BEFERBRR)N10% BEEE
REERS - WAREHS 2 BHREZERRAZ50% -
AR B R BEEME -0k - RESEEIER
FERBEEUBIFEERTFEBRLEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e M B mRME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE_FT—=—F+_FA=+—HIFE

32. TRADE PAYABLES 32.

The aging analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice
dates, is as follows:

0 to 90 days 0£&90H

91 to 180 days 912180 H

181 to 365 days 181 £ 365H
Over 365 days #838 365 H

Trade payables generally have credit terms ranging from 10
days to 60 days (2012: ranging from 10 days to 60 days).

At 31 December 2013, trade payables are denominated
in RMB, HKD and USD of approximately RMB8,104,000,
RMB3,776,000 and RMBS8,443,000 (2012: RMB12,410,000,
RMB5,000,000 and Nil) respectively.

B ESRE
BEZZAH  ENEZZENRRY TN
T
The Group
rEH
2013 2012
—E—=5F —E——F
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR®TR AREF T
17,966 13,881
54 1,677
250 1,604
2,053 248
20,323 17,410

[ENESRBENEESH BN TFI10BE60H
(ZZ2——F N TF10BE60H) °

MW_E—=%+_"A=1+—0 ENE5X
HIUARE - BRLRETHE 550EA
R #8,104,0007T + A K #3,776,0007T &
AR #8443, 000 t(ZFE——F: AR
12,410,0007C + AR¥ 5,000,000 7T ) »

33. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 33. Bt ERARHEMEMAIE
The Group
REE

2013 2012
—E-=F %
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR® TR ARBTF T
Advance from customers BE#H; 4,417 296
Accruals of staff costs FEFHE TRk 3,685 3,067
Accruals of operating expenses JEET A E RS 2,394 872
VAT payable FET 12 B 1,373 744
Payable to fixed assets vendor JEfT & E & A& 5 ARUE 909 —
Other payables (Note) Hofth FE A RIB (A7 5t ) 3,411 418
16,189 5,397

Note: Hiat -
Included in the Group's other payables as at 31 December 2013 was RIZE—Z=ZF+_A=+—HB St AXEENHME

an amount due to a director of a subsidiary of the Group who is not a
director of the Company of approximately RMB2,830,000 (2012: Nil).

NHRESENAREEETHER

A —RERQLIEA

NRIEZ)WFEHAREE 2,830,000 L(=ZF—=F :

&) -

“E-=HER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REVBRRMEE(F

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

33. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 33. FEstERARHMENRIEZ)

Accruals of operating expenses

34. BANK BORROWINGS

Current
Bank loans, secured

The maturities of the above bank borrowings are as follows:

Carrying amount repayable:

— within one year

— more than one year but within two years
— more than two years but within five years
— more than five years

Secured bank loan
Less: Amounts classified under current
liabilities
Secured bank loan that contain a
repayment on demand clause or due
within one year

Amounts classified under non-current liabilities

The Company

AKAT
2013 2012
—E-=F —E -
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBET T AREETTT
ERHEE R X 340 554
34. |RITER
The Group
KEH
2013 2012
—E—= —E—CF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARETTT
FE
|ITER - BEM 29,055 29,500
FHSRITEREIBBANT
2013 2012
—E—= T
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®F T ARBFT
JEEEFIAREE
— R—FR 25,317 29,500
— BBE—FERRFER 876 —
— BBMFERAEFTA 1,579 —
— BBAF 1,283 —
BEMIRITER 29,055 29,500
B D BEATRBAENIAE
BIEBREREEERERN
—FREHEEHIR
TER (29,055) (29,500)

DEBIFRBDRERK

T8 — —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

BE
34.

35.

—F—=F A=t —AULEE

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

At 31 December 2013, the bank loans were secured by
charges over the Group’'s buildings and prepaid land
lease payments of approximately RMB11,748,000 and
RMB2,917,000 respectively, corporate guarantee provided by
an independent third party, personal guarantee provided by a
director of a subsidiary of the Group who is not a director of
the Company, and guarantee provided by The Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. The weighted
average effective interest rate on the short-term bank loans
is 6.0% per annum.

At 31 December 2012, the bank loans were secured
by charges over the Group’s buildings, prepaid land
lease payments of approximately RMB7,542,000 and
RMB2,990,000 respectively and corporate guaranteed by
an independent third party. The weighted average effective
interest rate on the short-term bank loans is 6.4% per
annum.

At 31 December 2013, the carrying amount of the
Group's borrowings are denominated in RMB and HKD of
approximately RMB24,500,000 and RMB4,555,000 (2012:
RMB29,500,000 and Nil) respectively.

BANK OVERDRAFTS

At 31 December 2013, the Group’'s bank overdrafts of
approximately RMB2,959,000 (2012: Nil) carried interest
at market rate of 5.0% per annum and was secured
by the Group’s pledged bank deposit of approximately
RMB6,114,000 (2012: Nil). The bank overdrafts were
denominated in USD.

34.

35.

RITEBRE)
MRZZE—=F+-_A=+—8 RITEZXHK
EEEFREMNTHAERBEDHHARE
11,748,000t X AR #2,917,0007T « —% 78
VE=ZFRENARER  AEEETHER
Al—BEB(WIEARAES)REMEAER
ARBEBFRITHERBTRHEAERERR o
RERITER ZMEFTAHERNERTE6.0
E °

R_ZE——F+-_A=+—08 " RITEZKHEK
EEEFMEMNTHHAERBEDHHARE
7,542,000 7T & A R ¥ 2,990,000 T A K — 4
B R=R R EIERERR - RHRTER
ZIEFHERNEREF64E -

R-T—=F+-"F=+—8  KEENER
MEEEENAREELIE 2380 ABAR
# 24,500,000 7T 2 A R# 4,555,000 L( =&
——f : AR% 29,500,000 T M) o

MITEX

M-TB—=F+-"A=+—0 KXEBEIRT
B ANREE 2,959,000 (=T ——4F : &)
RS FENES0EE - WAHREENEE
HIRITFEROARYG6,114,000T(—F——
FoE)VERR o RITIBEAETETE -

“E-=HER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

RE B R R (A

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

36. PROMISSORY NOTE

Promissory note issued BT AN EE
Interest expenses FEZH
Interest payable FERTFLE
Exchange alignment fE 5, 2

On 27 May 2013, Link Excellent Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, issued an unsecured promissory
note with principal value of HK$20,000,000 as a partial
consideration for the acquisition of the business of trading
of garment accessories on behalf of the Company. The
promissory note bears interest at 3.0% per annum and is
payable on 27 May 2014, being the date which is 12 months
after the date of the issue of the note. The fair value of
the promissory note at the date of issue was approximately
RMB15,165,000.

At 31 December 2013, the promissory note was measured
at amortised cost, using effective interest rate of 8.3% per
annum.

At 31 December 2013, the carrying amount of the
promissory note approximates to its fair value.

36. AYRE

The Group
AEH
2013 2012
—E-=F —EFE—-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR AR¥ETT

15,165 —
756 —
(286) —
(179)

15,456 —

RZE—=FRA=-+tH AQaEHEE
ff B A Al Link Excellent Limited 277 AN & %8
20,000,000 7 T H) IR AN RiE - (ERK
KARAYHERKRE G E BEXEBHHRE -
ANZBRENRI0%TE  BR_Z—N
FRAZTtHAIZEEZTERE12[@A
EH)EERE ANERRETARNATELY
AAR¥ 15,165,000 7T °

R-B—=F+_"A=+—8  ANEEFEH
BB E N K 8.3% IR ARG S o

RZTZ—=F+-A=+—80  AFNEENE
EEEENFERS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

RE B R R (A

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

37. DEFERRED TAXATION
The Group

The following are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognised and movements thereon during the current and
prior years:

37. ELEBIR

EE
AEBRAFERBEFERINTIERIEN
HEENMABBEREZHMT

Amortisation

At 1 January 2012 R-—ZZE—=—F—HF—H

Credit to profit or loss for the year EFAFEEH=
At 31 December 2012 R-ZT——F
and 1 January 2013 +—A=+—HK
—E-=%—-H—H
Credit to profit or loss for the year st AFEEZR
At 31 December 2013 R-E—=%F
+=ZA=+—H

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
consolidated statement of financial position purposes:

Deferred tax assets RIEFIHE B

Note:

At 31 December 2013, the Group had unused tax losses of approximately
RMB413,000 (2012: Nil) available for offset against future taxable profits.
The tax loss of approximately RMB413,000 will expire after five years
from the year of assessment they relate to. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the estimated unused tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams of the respective subsidiary of the
Group which incurred the tax loss.

of prepaid Decelerated
land lease tax
payments depreciation Total
L
HEFESE  BEBEFE =H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARETT ARBT T
35 819 854
— 182 182
35 1,001 1,036
— 211 211
35 1,212 1,247

AT BBtER & B RSIRR 2R M 1 H B0 AT 1B 4%
AT -

The Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E—= —ZF—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREFTT
1,247 1,036

Bet

R-T—=F+-A=+—8 AEEHETAEKH
RIRERTE T AR BB E B AR 413,000
(ZZ—=F  |&) - BHEBHARKE 413,000 TH R
HE@ETEFEERATFEER - BREERBEEN
7 55 B 4 B P BB /R R SR PRUE F R B S AT FE B - B A
READARGEERRECHEEE -

“E-=HER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MR R M (A

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 38. WWIEKIEB A
(@) On 26 March 2013, Joystar (BVI) Auto Inter-parts (@) MZZTE—=F=A=1+/"8 ' AQRHZE
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, &fffE Al Joystar (BVI) Auto Inter-parts
entered into an agreement with independent third Limited B 7 2 = 5T ik - NEE S
parties to acquire 100% of the entire issued share #91X {8 28,000,000 TT(HHER O AR
capital of Sinogate Energy Group and their identifiable 422,341,000 70 ) W B R Bt B R S [ &
asset and liabilities for a total contracted consideration BT AR 100% & E A5 E E R
of HK$28,000,000 (equivalent to approximately BE -WEBEENBERENAARE
RMB22,341,000). The aggregate amount of goodwill 21,847,0007C - ZWEE R T —=4F
arising as a result of the acquisition is approximately AAZ+—HZ=K -
RMB21,847,000. The acquisition was completed on 21
May 2013.
Acquiree’s carrying
amount and fair value
HEBFNREEERAFE
RMB’'000
ARBF T
Net assets acquired: PR FEE !
Property, plant and equipment W - BE K& 4
Inventories 7E 5,785
Prepayments, deposits and TERRIE - ek
other receivables H i FE R IE 16,662
Cash and bank balances e RIRITAEER 23,201
Trade payables T E S 5IE (12,331)
Accruals and other payables FEET B R R E MR RIE
(32,827)
494
Goodwill FEES 21,847
22,341
Total consideration at fair value RAFEFENERE
satisfied by: RTFHAFRZA
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITHEH 22,341
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: WEELNRERAFE
Cash and bank balances acquired BRI ¢ RIRITA R 23,201
Cash paid for acquisition HUEESZ N2 RE (22,341)
860
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

HE—F—

ZFEFH=F—HIFEE

38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

Sinogate Energy Group was acquired so as to continue
the expansion of the Group’s rubber trading business.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to approximately
RMB4,000 have been excluded from the consideration
transferred and have been recognised as an expense
during the year ended 31 December 2013.

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Sinogate Energy
Group because the cost of the combination included
a control premium. In addition, the consideration
paid for the combination effectively included amounts
in relation to the benefits of expected synergies,
revenue growth, future market development and the
assembled workforce of Sinogate Energy Group. These
benefits are not recognised separately from goodwill
because they do not meet the recognition criteria for
identifiable intangible assets. None of the goodwill
arising on the acquisition is expected to be deductible
for tax purpose.

Included in the profit for the year ended 31 December
2013 is approximately RMB771,000 and revenue for
the year ended 31 December 2013 is approximately
RMB313,576,000 attributable to the additional business
generated by Sinogate Energy Group.

Had the business combination been effected on
1 January 2013, the revenue of the Group would
have been approximately RMB681,284,000, and the
profit for the year would have been approximately
RMB43,359,000. The pro forma financial information
is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily
an indication of revenue and results of the Group that
actually would have been completed on 1 January 2013
nor is it intended to be a projection of future profits.

38. WEME AR (#)

(a)

(%)

WETBERSRES EREERASHE
MIRBEE R -

BB A BRI BCA K AR 4,000 7T
TEERMEEREAR  YEREE=
=+ _A=1T—RILFE®ERR
FX °

WP B R EEELNAEIREEG 6
A BIEIERORE o BN - BAH
MREER EBREPBEREBENE
HIBRIMIE - WK - REAMHER
REBRTAFHROMNEEROTE
& E N R B FRER - TR R
ZEMEI AT A A BRI A E g
RITE - FHUBEENAER TSR
RBIHIER -

HE-ZT—=F+-_A=+—HLEFE
B 5 1B 5 P B B R &= B P A PR BE N BE
EEENHARK771,00070  MEZE
—E-—=F+-A=1+—BItFEHEK
mEIETERE RS B AT KRB INETS
I A REE 313,576,000 7T °

WMEKAHA_ZT—=F—HA—8H
AW REEHRABHOAEARE
681,284,000 L R FERFKHAAR
" 43,359,000 7T ° HEMFERHEMRH
AR WP RRASEER-_T—=F
—A— AR KB BEERESHKAR
¥E  BEERTTEBIER R G
H o

“E-=HER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REVBRRMEE(F

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b) On 15 May 2013, the Company entered into an
agreement with independent third parties to acquire
100% of the entire issued share capital of Brilliant
Summit and its identifiable asset and liabilities of
Brilliant Summit, for a total contracted consideration
of HK$42,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB32,150,000). The aggregate amount of goodwill
arising as a result of the acquisition is approximately

RMB29,252,000. The acquisition was completed on 27

May 2013.

Net assets acquired:
Trade receivables (Note)

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

Cash and bank balances
Bank borrowings

Trade payables

Accruals and other payables
Tax payables

Goodwill

Total consideration at fair value

satisfied by:
Cash and bank balances
Consideration shares
Promissory note

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:
Cash and bank balances acquired

Cash paid for acquisition

Note:

The trade receivables acquired on 27 May 2013 with a fair value
of approximately RMB7,559,000 had gross contractual amounts of

approximately RMB10,437,000

PR EEE -
FEWE 5 3R (1 7t)

BNHR - e REMEYRRIR
Re LIRTTHR

RITEK

e E 5308

FEET B M R E A N 5RIR

e IR

5 8

[

BATEFENANKRE
BTRHFRZA :

Ha RIRTTHEH

HERA

ESRESE:S

WIBEENER SR HFHE
EREHIRE RIRITAER
RURBEBX N zRE

Wit -

38. WIEMB AR (&)
by W-ZET—=%FHB+HA AQFH
BYE=ZFANWE WEAEHR
242,000,000 T(HHER K AR
32,150,000 T ) Y g 18 )I| 2 BB B2 2 17
BEARB100% AR EATH#BEER A
E-WEBEAHHEABOEARE
29,252,000 - ZWHEERZ_Z—=4F
AA-t++HZK -

Acquiree’s carrying
amount and fair value
RUBETHREER D VE
RMB’'000

AREBTTT

7,559
856
755

(1,167)

(4,668)

(27)
(410)

2,898
29,252

32,150

6,074
10,911
15,165

32,150

755
(6,074)

(5,319)

M-Z—=FRA-t++tBElE 2FEHAR
# 7,559,000 L2 W E HHIE 2 & N BBRAR

AE#510,437,0007C °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MR R (A

For the year ended 31 December 2013

HE—F—

ZFEFH=F—HIFEE

38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

Brilliant Summit was acquired so as to diversity its
existing business in order to reduce business risk.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to approximately
RMB83,000 have been excluded from the consideration
transferred and have been recognised as an expense
during the year ended 31 December 2013.

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Brilliant Summit
because the cost of the combination included a
control premium. In addition, the consideration paid
for the combination effectively included amounts in
relation to the benefits of expected synergies, revenue
growth, future market development and the assembled
workforce of Brilliant Summit. These benefits are not
recognised separately from goodwill because they
do not meet the recognition criteria for identifiable
intangible assets. None of the goodwill arising on
the acquisition is expected to be deductible for tax
purpose.

Included in the profit for the year ended 31 December
2013 is approximately RMB1,521,000, and revenue for
the year ended 31 December 2013 is approximately
RMB20,923,000 attributable to the additional business
generated by Brilliant Summit.

Had the business combination been effected on
1 January 2013, the revenue of the Group would
have been approximately RMB557,881,000, and the
profit for the year would have been approximately
RMB43,759,000. The pro forma financial information
is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily
an indication of revenue and results of the Group that
actually would have been completed on 1 January 2013
nor is it intended to be a projection of future profits.

38. WEME AR (#)

(b)

(&
WEER)IISE e ERRARAEY 1t
TR K75 R o

B EE B BRI R A K AR HE 83,000 7Tl
TEERTEZRERN  TEREBEEZ
T+ -A=t+—RHIFEERAE
X o

BRI R EBEENEEDHES AR
BREERGE - I AR
EER - EER)| 5B TE 87 R
& WERE - REMBERREKET
AFEROMSEBRNOETE - ZFME
WHEEEESFER - TIHRZENE
WG A #BELEENERRE
BHRBELNBER TG /RREA
B o

HE-Z—=F+-A=+—HILFE
B A B IR R ) | S B P A PR RE NS TS PR
AR 1,521,000T ° MEE =
T—=F+-_A=+—HBLFENKZ
BIER) S B T R EEINEBEERL
AER# 20,923,000 7T °

WMEKAHA_ZT—=F—A—8
AR REEHNRABHOAEARE
557,881,000 Tt R FE M B ABAR
#:43,759,000 7T ° HE M FERHEMRH
AR WTITERRASEER-_T—=F
—A— AR KB BEERESHKAR
¥E  BEER T BIERR G
H o

“E-=HER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REVBRRMEE(F

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—=FF-A=1—AIFE

39. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT 39. REHERE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RB|ER - AEB 2 T EEEEHERE T
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non- HI BRFE i B AR SR AR A BRI AR S
cancellable operating leases within fall due as follows:
The Group
KEE
2013 2012
—E-=F —EFE—-—F
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBT ARBF T
Within one year —F R 707 549
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EFAF(REEREMT) 1,569 1,543
2,276 2,092
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the KEHEFIREASEREE TREHAE
Group for its warehouse, factory and office premises. Leases MERMNES HHZTANT —ENF
are negotiated for a range from 1 to 4 years (2012: 1 to ZE—ZF: —ERF) MESEEEKRR
5 years) and rentals are fixed over the lease terms and do BT TEEXAES AEBWENAEE
not include contingent rentals. The Group does not have an SR EEE RIS -
option to purchase the leased asset at the expiry of the lease
period.
40. CAPITAL COMMITMENT 40. EREIE
The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the reporting RERERIR - AEBMEAREDT ¢
period are as follows:
The Group
REE
2013 2012
—E-=F T
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR®T ARBTF T
Acquisition of prepaid land lease payments W B B < + 70 & K08
Contracted but not provided for REEERS 13,347 13,347
Property, plant and equipment M - BB KR
Contracted but not provided for SHEEE 2 2,861 2,750
16,208 16,097
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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PA RS SRR M AL (A

For the year ended 31 December 2013

2z
41.

42.

43.

—F—=F A=t —AULEE

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2013, the Group and the Company did not
have any significant contingent liabilities (2012: Nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2013, certain property, plant and equipment
(Note 18), prepaid land lease payments (Note 19) and bank
deposit (Note 27) of the Group were pledged as collateral
for secured banking facilities granted to the Group.

At 31 December 2012, certain property, plant and equipment
(Note 18) and prepaid land lease payments (Note 19) of the
Group were pledged as collateral for secured bank loans
granted to the Group.

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Company did not
pledge any assets at the end of the reporting period.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying employees in
Hong Kong. The Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme
are calculated at 5% of the salaries and wages subject to
a monthly maximum amount of contribution of HK$1,250
(HK$1,000 prior to 1 June 2012) per employee and vest fully
with employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary established in the
PRC are members of a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government. This subsidiary is required
to contribute certain percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and wages to the central pension scheme to fund
the retirement benefits. The local municipal government
undertakes to assume the retirement benefits obligations of
all existing and future retired employees of this subsidiary.
The only obligation of this subsidiary with respect to the
central pension scheme is to meet the required contributions
under the scheme.

41.

42,

43.

HAEE
RZB-—Z=ZF+ZA=+—0  XEERAR
AYEEMEAKABGB(ZE——F &) -

BEEHER

RZE—Z=ZF+ZA=+—8 &EEETY
¥ BERZHEOITE18) BN LMAER
H(HEE19) RIRTTER(MFE27) EERTER
REBBREEMBRITHE Z M

R-B——F+-"A=+—08 KEBETY
¥ WMELEREMETI8)REN L HMBEER
BE(MF1)BEERIEAREBERFEIRR
TERZERSR -

R_E—=ZFR-_ZT——F+-_A=+—8 -
AA R EA RS B R EIF T EE -

EBARBFEE
AEERBEESAHELESTEEH AT S
FiEEEARREERAFEABSE([&E
©ETEl]) - AEEABRBES T 2 HRTIRR
BEHERIEZS%TE  BHEEFAH
HKERAB1,250BT(R=_TE—=FA—H
A1 1,000870) - BB REESFEI1E L #t
W& BRBEEMRAE -

RPBERZz AEBNBAR ZEE RMITH
B EE 2R RBASFEIKE - ZMBAF
AREREAHERTIEZETANLAPTR
BASFTEIHR  (EREREMNZES - 77
MR AGEAEZNB AR ARA LAKER
KEB ZRINBHEE - ZMBARBPRIR
ReFtBzE—BEERBREBEFEELMFHR

o
/N
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129



130

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE_FT—=—F+_FA=+—HIFE

44. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances as disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group entered into the following material transaction with
related parties during the year.

(a) Compensation of key management
personnel

Compensation for key management personnel,
including amount paid to the Company’s directors and
the senior executive is as follows:

Salaries and other short-term benefits e M E AR RS
Employer contribution to pension scheme RK%Et&11E =&

45. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

On 27 May 2013, the Company acquired 100% of the entire
issued share capital of Brilliant Summit for a total contracted
consideration of HK$42,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB32,150,000). The consideration of approximately
RMB10,911,000 and RMB15,165,000 were satisfied by issue
of the Company’s ordinary shares and promissory note
issued by Link Excellent Limited on behalf of the Company
respectively (Note 38).

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MR R M (A

44. EXBEFIRS

45.

Brize MBS mR AR M T BN R 5 KRR
S FRARNEEEHEBEESITENTERR
5 o

(a) TEEBASZHE

IZERABZMAE  BREENARAR
BEEREBATABSENT

2013 2012
—E-—=F —E——F
RMB’'000 RMB’'000

AR®F ARETT

1,194 1,245
64 64
1,258 1,309

FEARERS
R-ZZBE—=FFAA=-++H  K2AINE
A #I (B 42,000,000 T(HERH AR
32,150,000 7T ) Y B2 )11 2 B B2 3 1T IR A B
100% ° REBE#H AR 10,911,000 TR AR
15,165,000 7L 73 75 Bl & B BT AN A 7] B AR
K H Link Excellent Limited {3z AR B2 T4
REBEZ T (FiFE38)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REVBRRMEE(F

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE_FT—=—F+_FA=+—HIFE

46. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There has not been significant events took place subsequent
to 31 December 2013.

47. AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 February
2014.

46.

47.

WEHRER
R-B—=F+_A=+—B% HESLS
REH -

RETIRRSMBERE

GEMBHRRERZZE—NF_A=+—HE
EEGHERIEETE -

“BR-ZEER
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The following is a summary of the published results and of the IATNAXREBER M FERESEERGR 2D T3
assets and liabilities of the Group prepared on the bases set out in ZEHEEKRBERE :
the note below:

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+-BiILFE
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
—TTAF ZEB-TF T——F T——F =ZB-=
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR¥BTT ARBTT AR¥TT AR%¥TrR

Revenue A 87,363 123,090 156,476 166,906 543,377
Gross profit EF 27,058 29,316 42,006 28,406 50,812
Profit before tax B 75 BT 8 14,160 18,480 22,475 12,295 47,626
Profit for the year NAEHEE AER

attributable to owners FEHFH

of the Company 12,084 14,497 18,851 10,798 43,044
Basic earnings per share  GRERZEF

(RMB cents) (AR®S) 8.1 8.9 9.1 2.0 3.8

As at 31 December

BR+=—HA=+—H
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
—ETENF = TF —ZT——F ZT—=—F =ZB-=

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTT AREBTT ARBTIT ARETT AR®T:R

Non-current assets FERBEE 34,558 36,782 46,097 44,099 105,928
Current assets mEEE 65,329 98,862 109,033 196,757 221,725
Current liabilities mEAaE 68,155 49,085 42,556 52,862 87,930
Net assets FEE 31,042 86,350 112,574 187,994 239,723
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